Devon

County Council

Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To: The Chairman and Members of County Hall
the Public Rights of Way Topsham Road
Committee Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD
(See below)
Your ref : Date : 28 June 2017 Email: wendy.simpson@devon.gov.uk
Our ref : Please ask for : Wendy Simpson, 01392 384383

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE

Thursday, 6th July, 2017

A meeting of the Public Rights of Way Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.15 pm in the
Committee Suite - County Hall to consider the following matters.

P NORREY
Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART | - OPEN COMMITTEE

Apologies

Minutes
Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 2 March 2017, (previously circulated).

Items Requiring Urgent Attention

Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting as
matters of urgency.

Devon Countryside Access Forum (Pages 1 - 10)
Draft Minutes of the meeting held on 27 April 2017 attached.

DEFINITIVE MAP REVIEWS

Parish Review: Definitive Map Review 1997-2017 - Parish of Burlescombe (Pages 11 -
14)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/17/48),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Willand & Uffculme



10

11

Parish Review: Definitive Map Review - Parish of Bittadon, with Marwood and West
Down (Pages 15 - 34)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/17/49),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Combe Martin Rural

Parish Review: Definitive Map Review 2016-2017 - Parish of Bridgerule (Pages 35 - 36)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/50),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Holsworthy Rural

Parish Review: Definitive Map Review - Parish of Sparkwell (Pages 37 - 44)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/17/51),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Bickleigh & Wembury

MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

Public Inquiry, Informal Hearing and Written Representation Decisions; Directions and
High Court Appeals (Pages 45 - 48)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/17/52),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Creedy, Taw & Mid Exe; Willand & Uffculme

Modification Orders (Pages 49 - 56)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/53),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Combe Martin Rural; llfracombe

Public Path Orders (Pages 57 - 70)

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure and Waste (HIW/17/54),
attached.

Electoral Divisions(s): Bickleigh & Wembury; Bideford West & Hartland; Holsworthy Rural;
lifracombe; Ipplepen & The Kerswells; Salcombe

PART Il - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS AND
PUBLIC

Nil

Members are reminded that Part || Reports contain confidential information and should therefore be
treated accordingly. They should not be disclosed or passed on to any other person(s).

Members are also reminded of the need to dispose of such reports carefully and are therefore invited to
return them to the Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal.




Membership

Councillors P Sanders (Chairman), T Inch (Vice-Chair), J Brook, | Chubb, P Colthorpe, A Dewhirst,
R Edgell, M Shaw and C Whitton

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at
this meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this
agenda should contact Wendy Simpson on 01392 384383.

Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website and can also be accessed
via the Modern.Gov app, available from the usual stores..

Public Participation

Any member of the public resident in the administrative area of the County of Devon may make a
presentation on any proposed public footpath order being considered by the Committee. Any request to
make a presentation must be made to the Chief Executive’s Directorate, County Hall, Exeter by 12 noon on
the third working day before the relevant meeting. For further information please contact Wendy Simpson
on 01392 384383.

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy
Centre’ on the County Council’'s website. The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any
confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more
information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are
excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any
filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the
wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy,
anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Democratic Services Officer in
attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on
proceedings at this meeting. An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. For information on Wi-Fi availability at other
locations, please contact the Officer identified above.

Emergencies

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following
the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect
personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another
format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other
languages), please contact the Information Centre on 01392
380101 or email to: centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the
Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter,
EX2 4QD.

f)

Induction loop system available



http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.uk

NOTES FOR VISITORS

All visitors to County Hall, including visitors to the Committee Suite and the Coaver Club conference and meeting rooms
are requested to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors have any specific requirements or needs they should
contact County Hall reception on 01392 382504 beforehand. Further information about how to get here can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/. Please note that visitor car parking on campus is limited and space
cannot be guaranteed. Where possible, we encourage visitors to travel to County Hall by other means.

SatNav — Postcode EX2 4QD

Walking and Cycling Facilities

County Hall is a pleasant twenty minute walk from Exeter City Centre. Exeter is also one of six National Cycle
demonstration towns and has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes — a map can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/. Cycle stands are outside County Hall Main Reception and Lucombe House

Access to County Hall and Public Transport Links

Bus Services K, J, T and S operate from the High Street to County Hall (Topsham Road). To return to the High Street
use Services K, J, T and R. Local Services to and from Dawlish, Teignmouth, Newton Abbot, Exmouth, Plymouth and
Torbay all stop in Barrack Road which is a 5 minute walk from County Hall. Park and Ride Services operate from Sowton,
Marsh Barton and Honiton Road with bus services direct to the High Street.

The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High Street) and St David’s and St Thomas'’s
both of which have regular bus services to the High Street. Bus Service H (which runs from St David’s Station to the High
Street) continues and stops in Wonford Road (at the top of Matford Lane shown on the map) a 2/3 minute walk from
County Hall, en route to the RD&E Hospital (approximately a 10 minutes walk from County Hall, through Gras Lawn on
Barrack Road).

Car Sharing
Carsharing allows people to benefit from the convenience of the car, whilst alleviating the associated problems of
congestion and pollution. For more information see: https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon.

Car Parking and Security

There is a pay and display car park, exclusively for the use of visitors, entered via Topsham Road. Current charges are:
Up to 30 minutes — free; 1 hour - £1.10; 2 hours - £2.20; 4 hours - £4.40; 8 hours - £7. Please note that County Hall
reception staff are not able to provide change for the parking meters.

As indicated above, parking cannot be guaranteed and visitors should allow themselves enough time to find alternative
parking if necessary. Public car parking can be found at the Cathedral Quay or Magdalen Road Car Parks (approx. 20
minutes walk). There are two disabled parking bays within the visitor car park. Additional disabled parking bays are
available in the staff car park. These can be accessed via the intercom at the entrance barrier to the staff car park.

= Wonford Road "’{3,
@ @ EXETER
~ lawn 2 ST DYIDS EXERER
i o access 1o 6%
Aokl petes CENTRAL BUS STATION
3 T o =8 R
Ll =% [ = 2 SN .o
F O\ - ) Arpee | 1= Q) Busstogs E = = 83785
(GHECN B glS. et | s Ty
| offeesmi gl -EM“ House @ cyde parking 2 \ MAGDALEN RD. -
2 % L~ _R“EP‘"’" Showes faciities 1 COUNTY =<
Main & £ ndeimacsing | & EXE HALL |5
Building BRIDGES =
i @ @ ST.THOMAS ]
Entrgnce ® ) STATION  /a377 TO COUNTESS
H Topsham Road H { WEAR & M5
«to Exeter City Centre ® @ ‘to Topsham/ Countess Wear »

NB @ @ Denotes bus stops

Fire/[Emergency Instructions

In the event of a fire or other emergency please note the following instructions. If you discover a fire, immediately inform
the nearest member of staff and/or operate the nearest fire alarm. On hearing a fire alarm leave the building by the
nearest available exit. The County Hall Stewardesses will help direct you. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and
do not use the lifts. Assemble either on the cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car
park behind Bellair, as shown on the site map above. Please remain at the assembly point until you receive further
instructions. Do not re-enter the building without being told to do so.

First Aid
Contact Main Reception (extension 2504) for a trained first aider.



https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/
https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon

Agenda Item 4

Devon Countryside Access Forum
Lucombe House

County Hall

Topsham Road

EXETER EX2 4QD

Tel: 07837 171000
01392 382084

hilary.winter@devon.qov.uk

www.devon.qov.uk/dcaf

Minutes of the Forty-Seventh Public Meeting
of the Devon Countryside Access Forum
held at Devon Travel Academy, Westpoint, Clyst St Mary, Exeter EX5 1DJ
Thursday, 27 April 2017

Attendance

Forum members

Simon Clist Linda Lee

Chris Cole (Vice Chair) Sue Pudduck

John Daw Mark Simpson

Gordon Guest Sarah Slade (Chair)

Jo Hooper Maggie Watson

Chris Ingram Councillor Philip Sanders

Devon County Council officers and others present

Richard Andrews, Senior Adviser (Coastal Access), Natural England
Helen Clayton, Senior Manager, Public Rights of Way, DCC

Hilary Winter, Forum Officer, DCC

1. Introductions and welcome to new members
New members John Daw, Jo Hooper and Maggie Watson were welcomed.
2. Apologies

Apologies were received from Mark Bullock, Sean Comber and Andrew Cox. The
resignations of Chris Britton and Ellie Wonnacott were noted. Appreciation was
expressed to Chris Britton in his role as Vice Chair.

3. Declaration of interests
There were no declarations of interest.
4, Election of Chair and Vice Chair

Sarah Slade was elected as Chair, proposed by Mark Simpson and seconded by
Sue Pudduck. Chris Cole was elected as Vice Chair, proposed by Chris Ingram and
seconded by Linda Lee. An email from the retiring Chair, Laura Leigh, expressing
thanks and best wishes for future meetings was read out.

The Devon Countryside Access Forum, is required, in accordance with
Sections 94 and 95 of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act
2000 (Local Access Forums), to advise on the improp&@é pjt)lic supported by

access to the countryside D eVO n

County Council


mailto:hilary.winter@devon.gov.uk
http://www.devon.gov.uk/dcaf

qumg ltem 4

5.

6.1

6.2

6.3

8.1

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

Minutes of the Forty-Sixth meeting held on 26 January 2017
Minutes of the previous meeting were approved and signed.
Matters arising

Dog advice

The seasonal dog advice article had been circulated to the press. The article for the
Daily Wag publication (East Devon) would be included in the forthcoming edition.

Correspondence log - Mid Devon
Clarification of glossary terms had been submitted to Mid Devon District Council.
Disability Access

The possibility of a conference or workshop on disability access would be
investigated further.
Action: Forum Officer

Correspondence log

Attention was drawn to item 12. The Forum Officer had attended a workshop on dog
walking but the proposed voluntary exclusion zone for the Exe Estuary, to protect
bird feeding grounds, would cover all users, both land and water based. Gordon
Guest had attended the Exe Estuary Winter Forum which had highlighted the decline
in bird species on the estuary, a concern due to its international and national
conservation designations. It was agreed the DCAF should respond to the
forthcoming dog walking code, one of the codes being developed in association with
the proposal, but send an initial advisory email focussing on dog fouling and the
need for a consistent approach by the three councils, and to flag up the possible
impact of dog displacement to other areas in Exmouth.

Action: Forum Officer to respond to the Exe Estuary Partnership.

DCAF member attendance at events/meetings

Disability access at Dawlish Warren. To note and approve letter. Feedback
from visit on 13 April.

The letter was approved. The Senior Ranger at Dawlish Warren had invited the
DCAF to discuss disability access and a site meeting had taken place attended by
Simon Clist, Gordon Guest, Sarah Slade and the Forum Officer. Discussions took
place about improving accessibility, particularly through the main access gate and a
gate through to the sand dunes. Gates immediately beside the visitor centre through
to the grazing area were more difficult to change. Members appreciated some of the
difficulties raised by the Ranger, in particular gates being left open by members of
the public. This led to ponies escaping through kissing gate systems unless
additional diagonal wooden sections were put in place which restricted recreational
access. It was agreed one gate could be kept open during part of the year as ponies
only grazed during the autumn/winter. This was a sensible compromise. The

Page 2



8.2

10.

ﬁ Agenda Item 4

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

Ranger agreed to look at other changes and signposting to gates that were
accessible. The nature reserve had extremely limited capital budgets for any
improvement works and the scope for drawing in funds was discussed. It was
suggested that TAP funding (town and parish funds) could be used, a source DCAF
could highlight to other groups, or tourism money.

The availability of a funding pot for DCAF to allocate for improvement projects, as in
some other counties, was raised. Match funding was also important.

Action: Forum Officer to draw up list of potential funding sources. Helen Clayton to
take back request for a funding pot.

Attention was drawn to the availability of accessible gates, opened with a radar key.
Chris Cole confirmed he had been involved in a development scheme in Pinhoe
whereby developer money had been used to put in a radar gate.

Other meetings
Gordon Guest had attended the Exe Estuary Partnership Winter Forum meeting.

Laura Leigh, outgoing Chair, had attended a meeting of SW LAF Chairs and Vice
Chairs to share good practice. Notes of the meeting would be sent to Sarah Slade.
Action: Forum Officer

Minutes of the Public Rights of Way Committee held on 2 March 2017

The minutes of the last Public Rights of Way Committee were noted. It was clarified
that where an appeal is allowed in part, the Planning Inspector only directed the
Authority to make a Modification Order for a section of a route and not the whole
route.

Public Rights of Way update

Helen Clayton, DCC, provided information on current work.
a) Budleigh Salterton to Otterton
An improved gate at the White Bridge end was planned but had been delayed
following storm repairs.

b) Lympstone
Remedial works were planned. Subsequent to the meeting it was confirmed
these had been completed.

c) Budgets
These remained at the same level as 2016-17.

d) Wardens’ work
Wardens were continuing with inspections and arranging vegetation cutting
orders. Exeter was now stile free except for one and in Crediton and
Shobrooke all stiles had been replaced by gates.

Page 3



qumg ltem 4

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

e) Multi-use

f)

DCC had secured Access Fund money of £1.5m over three years to improve
sustainable travel. The scheme aims to help people make informed choices
on how they travel, encouraging more people to walk, cycle and use
sustainable transport which provides health and environmental benefits. The
Public Rights of Way team had been asked for advice on spending this fund
and it had been decided parishes will be able to bid into funds. A steering
group will allocate funding.
https://www.devonnewscentre.info/funding-for-sustainable-travel-projects-in-
devon/

Action: Helen Clayton, DCC, to circulate information when available.

Following an internal DCC multi-use/recreational trail meeting it was
confirmed the DCAF will be added to the planning consultation list as a
standard consultee. The DCAF will not be involved at the pre-application
consultation stage as its proceedings were in the public domain. Best
practice was being established concerning design of structures to suit both
landowners and disabled users and DCAF position statements would be
included. It had been agreed an audit trail of decision making, particularly in
terms of restrictive covenants, was important together with clarity and
transparency around pre-application studies and audits.

Questions were raised about recent surfacing work on the Pegasus Trail. The
new surface, extending for 1km, was seen as less suitable for horse-riders
and impacted on cyclists and disability users too. The landscape impact in a
rural area was greater. Helen Clayton confirmed that a price was being
obtained to put a dust layer down. The trail was now a promoted route which
influenced the standard. It was agreed the clarity of contracts was an
important consideration.

Action: Helen Clayton, DCC, to feedback to the DCAF on this matter.

Definitive Map Review

A Modification Order to delete paths along the River Coly, made following an
application by landowners, had not been confirmed by the Planning
Inspectorate. The paths, added to the Definitive Map following an earlier
decision, are therefore now formally recorded. Discussions will be taking
place with landowners, in particular regarding the installation of a couple of
large bridges. An engineer is looking at one existing bridge in stock to see if it
is suitable. Putting the paths in place presented a funding issue as PROW
capital funding for 2017-18 had already been allocated. Discussions are also
taking place with the Ramblers.

A public inquiry at Pitt Farm, Hemyock and Culmstock had confirmed a
Modification Order, with modifications made by the Inspector to add a footpath
in Culmstock and a restricted byway in Hemyock.

A hearing had taken place in Sandford for a restricted byway and a decision
was expected in due course.

Action: Helen Clayton would circulate a list of Public Inquiries/Hearings in
case DCAF members wished to attend.

Page 4



ﬁ Agenda Item 4

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

g) Public Rights of Way Committee
The next meeting was taking place on 6 July.

h) Deregulation Act
There was no timetable despite commitment to the process. The work in
formulating the new regulations had been underestimated.

i) Minor roads

A discussion took place on the likely DCC downgrading of minor roads in
terms of maintenance, not legal status. Some were likely to come across to
Public Rights of Way for maintenance. It was understood proposals will be
circulated to parishes. Concerns were raised about roads with partial closure
or where damage could occur to cars. Diminution of safety standards could
become an issue where minor roads became increasingly used for
recreational access. The Public Rights of Way team was in discussions about
the impact on its budget and the need for a proper handover of additional
routes.

It was agreed the DCAF had a role in flagging up the shifting burden of cost to
Public Rights of Way.

Action: Forum Officer to draft email to register the DCAF’s interest in the
process.

11. To note and approve responses to consultations or advice given and any
feedback

11.1 List of Streets

The email to the Assistant County Solicitor was noted and approved. Helen Clayton,
DCC, had subsequently had a meeting and it was agreed there was no reason why
the List of Streets (highways maintainable at public expense) should not include
Definitive Map information on public rights of way (the majority of which were also
maintainable at public expense). There were some technical issues associated with
migrating the information across and further talks would take place. As well as
assisting with the Definitive Map review a complete List of Streets would help with
planning search enquiries and internal matters. This proposal was welcomed.
Action: Helen Clayton, DCC, to progress and report back.

11.2 Revised draft Charging Schedule and Regulation 123 List consultation - North
Devon Council

The response was noted and approved.

11.3 Revised draft Charging Schedule and Regulation 123 List consultation -
Torridge District Council

The response was noted and approved.
11.4 Buckfastleigh Neighbourhood Plan

The response was noted and approved.

Page 5



qumg ltem 4

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

11.5 Greater Exeter Strategic Plan - Issues

12.

12.1

The response was noted and approved.
Current consultations
Coastal access report - Kingswear to Lyme Regis

Richard Andrew, Senior Adviser Coastal Access (Devon and Cornwall) with Natural
England gave a presentation on the Kingswear to Lyme Regis coastal access report.

The report was divided into nine chapters, each covering a section of the coast (68
miles in total).

Natural England had written to all landowners along the trail and in the coastal
margin. There were 2000 landowners within the coastal area; 400 adjacent to
spreading room and 200 with land on the trail or in the coastal margin.

The trail had not been walked and NE had looked at the current infrastructure and
information from the SW Coast Path Association, Devon County Council, Torbay
Council, the National Trust and other groups. There were no realignments from the
existing SWCP route.

Specific alternative routes had been identified at Man Sands, to avoid times of
flooding, and along the Exe Estuary trail when the ferry is not running.

Rollback identified areas where the coast can move back in negotiation with
landowners when the trail erodes but the revised route would not need to go to the
Secretary of State. The coastal margin is the area between the trail and the sea,
and landward at discretion.

Natural England had used 25 and 50 year data from the Environment Agency and
had been in discussions with authority wardens and rangers and others regarding
particular issues. Along the coastal margin there is reduced liability for landowners,
below that of trespass.

There will be restrictions on access by foot at Dawlish Warren due to conservation
reasons. The proposal will mirror the voluntary exclusion zone being proposed at
Dawlish for the Exe Estuary and will be reviewed after five years. The other
exclusion is on the Otter estuary on health and safety grounds due to mud flats and
salt marsh.

The report, published on 30 March, has an eight week consultation period. Anyone
can make representation on the statutory form and these will be sent to Defra.
Those landowners affected can object and these forms will go to Defra and the
Planning Inspectorate to determine whether the objection is valid. Once due process
has been followed, the Secretary of State can approve with or without changes.

Where an area needs rollback the trail will move slowly back as there is erosion.

Comment was made that from the establishment and maintenance cost perspective
it would be best to do it once, on a proper basis. Mr Andrews replied that if a new

Page 6



13.

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

ﬁ Agenda Item 4

gate is needed it may go back further. No decisions are made on where a future
route will go; it is a principle rather than a line on a map.

Where there are multiple representations about a particular site, it was confirmed
that these will be summarised and a statement made about the number of
representations.

It was suggested that NE specify the Lower Ferry in Dartmouth in the report, rather
than stating ferry.

It was suggested that accessibility could be improved. Many coastal car parks
include earth bunds which deter access. Sections of uneven ground could still be
suitable for scooters and wheelchairs. It was confirmed that discussions had taken
place with local people, rangers and local authorities. Funding was limited. The
DCAF was advised to include specific proposals for improvements in its comments
on the next stages.

The poor ferry access, via steps, at Starcross was mentioned. The DCAF was
advised to take this up with the access authority.

The Forum noted that the budget for this stretch was just under £20,000 for all work
which appeared insignificant. It was confirmed that as this route followed the SWCP
costs were minimal and were either for new gates or interpretation boards.

It was agreed it would be complicated and confusing if there was no alignment
between mandatory and voluntary exclusions at Dawlish Warren, put in place under
coastal access and other legislation by Natural England and Teignbridge District
Council.

It was noted that there was no roll-back at Ladram Bay and elsewhere along the
East Devon coast. This would be a matter to put in the representations.

It was clarified that where the existing coast path is on a permissive route this would
become the England Coastpath and a landowner could not withdraw the permissive
route.

Natural England would discuss maintenance with the local authorities, particularly on
new routes.

In terms of progress elsewhere, Minehead to Combe Martin would be published on
15 June - delayed due to purdah. Investigations on the next stretches from Combe
Martin to Marsland Mouth and Kingswear to Cremyll would commence Stage 1
(investigation) in June.

The closing date for the consultation was 25 May at 5 p.m. Members were asked to
provide any comments by 5 May.
Action: Members to submit comments to the Forum Officer.

To consider and approve draft disability access position statement

A discussion took place on the draft disability access position statement and further
suggestions made by Gordon Guest. It was agreed it needed to be clearer with the

Page 7



qumg ltem 4

14.

15.

16.

17.

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

number of advisory bullets increased to focus attention. The statement was aimed at
local authorities, developers, planners and councils and it was agreed the content
should reflect that and elements of best practice. Although there were other types of
disability it was agreed restricted mobility should be the main focus of the position
statement with a statement reflecting that improvements for wheelchairs and
trampers would also benefit buggy users. It was agreed the legal framework around
equality and public responsibilities should be included.

The DCAF resolved that an initial draft should be worked on by Gordon Guest, Chris
Cole, Jo Hooper and Maggie Watson before circulating to all members.
Action: Forum Officer to progress with the disability sub-group.

Work Plan

Following discussion it was agreed that the National Trust should be invited to speak
at the October meeting and either Countryside Mobility or Living Options at the
January meeting.

A joint training event with Dartmoor Access Forum was proposed.

It was agreed working groups would be arranged in the autumn to discuss coastal
access for forthcoming stretches in South and North Devon.

It was noted that horse riding information for Devon was not as comprehensive as it
could be. Multi-use sections of the National Cycle Network were not clear, unlike
some other counties such as Cornwall and Dorset. It was confirmed the recreational
trail information was not the responsibility of the Public Rights of Way section but
Explore Devon. The Public Rights of Way website marked clearly all the bridleways.
It was agreed to convene a working group to discuss this and also the availability of
carriage driving access. Members of the group confirmed as Chris Cole, John Daw,
Chris Ingram and Linda Lee.

Action: Forum Officer to arrange working group and speak to Explore Devon prior to
the meeting.

Chris Cole provided a list of acronyms used by the Trail Riders’ Fellowship and
suggested a DCAF version might be useful.

Action: Forum Officer to progress.

Training Day

A joint training day with Dartmoor Access Forum to view Fingle Woods in the first
week of July was proposed.

Action: Forum Officer to liaise with Dartmoor Access Forum.

National LAF Conference

The Conference was on 21 June in Birmingham. Sarah Slade offered to attend with
Jo Hooper and Sue Pudduck as 2" and 3™ reserves.

Dates of meetings 2017-18
Dates for 2017-18 were confirmed as 12 October and 25 January.

Page 8



ﬁ Agenda Item 4

Devon Countryside Access Forum 27.04.17

18. Any other business

18.1 County Councillors on the DCAF
Thanks were expressed to Clir Philip Sanders and ClIr Jim Knight for their work on
the DCAF during their term as Chair and Vice Chair of the Public Rights of Way
Committee, DCC.

18.2 Bridges
Gordon Guest noted access improvements to bridges at Cullompton, Heddon Valley
and on the Granite Way. It was agreed he should write as an individual to express
thanks, stating that he had raised this at the DCAF meeting.
Action: Gordon Guest

18.3 Website biographies
Biographies would be added to the DCAF website following the DCC elections and
confirmation of councillors as Chair and Vice Chair of the Public Rights of Way
Committee.

18.4 DCAF Annual Report
The report would be compiled shortly and circulated to last year's members.

18.5 Letterhead

It was agreed not to alter the current DCAF logo when letterheads are re-printed.

Page 9






Agenda Iltem 5

HIW/17/48

Public Rights of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Definitive Map Review 1997 - 2017
Parish of Burlescombe

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that it be noted that the Definitive Map Review has
been completed in the parish of Burlescombe and no modifications are required to be
made.

1. Introduction

The report examines the Definitive Map Review in the parish of Burlescombe in Mid Devon
District.

2. Background

The original parish survey, under s. 27 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act
1949, proposed thirty four footpaths in Burlescombe. After review by the County Council and
Parish Council, a number of paths were considered to be private or withdrawn and subsequently
twenty four footpaths were proposed for inclusion on the draft Definitive Map. Representations
and objections were made to five paths by the British Transport Commission and twenty one
footpaths were subsequently recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement for Burlescombe in
Tiverton Rural District Council with a relevant date of the Definitive Map for the district of
18 June 1963. Footpaths Nos. 9, & 11 were stopped up in 1964 for the Redland Tile factory
development and Footpath No. 25 was extinguished in 1970. There are now eighteen public
footpaths currently recorded on the Definitive Map for the parish.

Proposals for change were received from the Parish Council in respect of the 1968 uncompleted
County reviews which had been kept on file. These were for the extinguishment of Footpaths
No. 19, 29 & 31 as no longer used and No. 30 as no longer served any purpose and the addition
of a footpath from Crocker Crossway up over the quarry escarpment to join the footpath to
Holcombe Rogus. No user or other evidence was submitted with these proposals and the
general review did not progress. No suggestions for change were made by the parish council in
respect of the 1977 review.

The Limited Special Review of Roads Used as Public Paths (RUPPS), also carried out in the
1970s, did not affect this parish.

The following Orders have been made and confirmed:

Minister of Transport Footpaths Nos. 9 &11, Burlescombe Town & Country Planning Act Orders
1964.

Tiverton Rural District Council Footpath No. 25, Burlescombe Public Path Stopping Up Order
1970.

The Secretary of State for the Environment Footpaths N0.19 & No0.32 Burlescombe The M5
Motorway (Chelston — Willand Side Roads) Order 1972.

Tiverton District Council Footpath No. 14, Burlescombe Public Path Diversion Order 1977.
Devon County Council Part of C102 road at Burlescombe Section 116 Stopping Up Order (with
reservation of Footpath No. 36, Burlescombe) 1985.

Mid Devon District Council Footpath No. 6, Burlescombe Public Path Diversion Order 1986.

Page 11



Agenda Item 5

Mid Devon District Council Footpath No. 6, Burlescombe Public Path Diversion Order 1989.

Mid Devon District Council Footpath No. 7, Burlescombe Public Path Diversion Order 1994.

Mid Devon District Council Footpath No. 15, Burlescombe Public Path Diversion Order 1995.
Mid Devon District Council Footpath No. 28, Burlescombe & No. 4, Uffculme Public Path
Diversion Order 1996.

Mid Devon District Council Footpaths No. 6, Burlescombe & No. 16, Holcombe Rogus Public
Path Diversion Order 1997.

Mid Devon District Council Footpath No. 32, Burlescombe Public Path Diversion Order 2000.

Legal Event Modification Orders will be made for these changes under delegated powers in due
course.

The review recommenced in November 2016 with a public meeting held in the Community Hall
at Burlescombe, prior to the evening’s parish council meeting. The routes previously claimed by
the Parish Council in the 1968 review were raised at the meeting. The Parish Council and public
attending were asked whether they wanted these routes to be considered as proposals for
change under the current review and that if they did, evidence would be required to support an
addition of a footpath or other public right of way.

3. Proposals

The Parish Council subsequently confirmed that they would not be presenting or supporting any
of the proposals that had been suggested in the previous reviews. No other proposals were
suggested for the addition, up or down grading or deletion of any public rights of way in the
parish. No responses were received from any other parishioners or members of the public with
any other proposals for consideration under the definitive map review.

In the absence of any valid proposals or claims for change, the definitive map review
consultation map for Burlescombe was published with no proposals for change to the Definitive
Map in the parish.

4, Consultations

Public consultation for the Definitive Map Review in the parish was carried out in March and April
2017 with no proposals for changes to the Definitive Map. The review was advertised in the
parish newsletter, on the parish noticeboard, in a local newspaper and a copy of the consultation
notice was also displayed in Burlescombe and Westleigh village centres.

The responses were as follows:

County Councillor R Radford - no comment
Mid Devon District Council - no comment
Burlescombe Parish Council - see above

British Horse Society - no comment
Devon Green Lanes Group - no comment
Ramblers' Association - no comment
Trail Riders' Fellowship - no comment
Country Land & Business Association - no comment
National Farmers’ Association - no comment
Cyclists Touring Club - no comment

No further proposals have been received during the period of consultation with the parish
council, public and local user group representatives.

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

5. Financial Considerations

Financial implications are not a relevant consideration to be taken into account under the
provision of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The Authority’s costs associated with
Modification Orders, including Schedule 14 appeals, the making of Orders and subsequent
determinations, are met from the general public rights of way budget in fulfilling our statutory
duties.

6. Legal Considerations

The implications/consequences of the recommendation(s) have been taken into account in the
preparation of the report.

7. Risk Management Considerations
No risks have been identified.
8. Equality, Environmental Impact and Public Health Considerations

Equality, environmental impact or public health implications have, where appropriate under the
provisions of the relevant legislation, been taken into account in the preparation of the report.

9. Conclusion
It is recommended that members note that the Definitive Map Review has been completed in the
parish of Burlescombe and no modifications are required to be made. Should any valid claim

with sufficient evidence be made in the next six months, it would seem reasonable for it to be
determined promptly rather than be deferred.

10. Reasons for Recommendation
To undertake the County Council’s statutory duty under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to
keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and to progress the parish by

parish review in the Mid Devon District area.

Meg Booth
Acting Chief Officer Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Division: Willand & Uffculme

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Tania Weeks
Room No: ABG Lucombe House, County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter

Tel No: (01392) 382833

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Correspondence files 2016 - date TW/DMR/Burlescombe
tw260517pra

sc/cr/DMR Parish of Burlescombe

03 260617

Page 13






Agenda Iltem 6

HIW/17/49

Public Rights of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Definitive Map Review
Parish of Bittadon, with Marwood and West Down

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that no Modification Order be made to modify
the Definitive Map and Statement in respect of Proposal 1, in the parish of Bittadon,
with Marwood and West Down.

1. Introduction

This report examines a claim submitted by the Trail Riders Fellowship in November 2005 in
the parish of Bittadon.

2. Background

The original survey under s. 27 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949
revealed that four footpaths and no bridleways were recorded on the Definitive Map and
Statement with a relevant date of 15t September 1957.

The review of the Definitive Map, under s.33 of the 1949 Act, which commenced in the late
1960s but was never completed, produced a number of proposals for change to the Definitive
Map at that time. The Limited Special Review of RUPP’s, carried out in the 1970s, did not
affect the parish.

The following order has been made and confirmed:

Devon County Council (Footpath No. 4, Bittadon) Public Path Diversion Order 1999.

A Legal Event Modification Order will be made for this change under delegated powers in due
course.

The current review began with an opening public meeting held in May 2010 in the parish. No
proposals arose from previous reviews. A Schedule 14 application made in 2005 has been
picked up as part of the current Review.

3. Proposals

Please refer to the appendix to this report regarding the Schedule 14 application: Proposed

addition of a byway open to all traffic along Bittadon Lane, Bittadon, as shown between points
A-B-C-D-E-F on plan EEC/PROW/11/67.

Page 15



Agenda Item 6

4, Consultations

General consultations have been carried out with the following results:

County Councillor Andrea Davis — no comment
North Devon Council — no comment
Bittadon Parish Meeting — no comment
West Down Parish Council — no objection to the application
Marwood Parish Council — no comment
British Horse Society — no comment
Byways & Bridleways Trust — no comment
Country Landowners’ Association — no comment
Devon Green Lanes Group — no comment
National Farmers’ Union — no comment
Open Spaces Society — no comment
Ramblers’ — no comment
Trail Riders’ Fellowship — no comment

Specific responses are detailed in the appendix to this report and included in the background
papers.

5. Financial Considerations

Financial implications are not a relevant consideration to be taken into account under the
provision of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The Authority’s costs associated with
Modification Orders, including Schedule 14 appeals, the making of Orders and subsequent
determinations, are met from the general public rights of way budget in fulfilling our statutory
duties.

6. Legal Considerations

The implications/consequences of the recommendation have been taken into account in the
preparation of the report.

7. Risk Management Considerations
No risks have been identified.
8. Equality, Environmental Impact and Public Health Considerations

Equality, environmental impact or public health implications have, where appropriate under
the provisions of the relevant legislation have been taken into account.

9. Conclusion
It is recommended that no Modification Order be made in respect of Proposal 1. There are no
further proposals for modifying the Definitive Map. A diversion of Footpath Nos. 3 and 4 will

be dealt with under delegated powers.

Should any further valid claim with sufficient evidence be made within the next six months it
would seem reasonable for it to be determined promptly rather than deferred.

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 6

10. Reasons for Recommendations
To undertake the County Council’s statutory duty under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and to progress the parish
by parish review in the North Devon area.

Meg Booth
Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Division: Combe Martin Rural

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Caroline Gatrell
Room No: ABG Lucombe House

Tel No: 01392 383240

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Correspondence Files Current DMR/BITTADON
¢cg090617pra

sc/cr/DMR Bittadon

04 260617

Page 17



Agenda Item 6

Appendix |
To HIW/17/49

A. Basis of Claim

The Highways Act 1980, Section 31(1) states that where a way over any land, other than a
way of such a character that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has actually been enjoyed by the public as of right and without
interruption for a full period of 20 years, the way is deemed to have been dedicated as a
highway unless there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that period to
dedicate it.

Common Law presumes that at some time in the past the landowner dedicated the way to the
public either expressly, the evidence of the dedication having since been lost, or by
implication, by making no objection to the use of the way by the public.

The Highways Act 1980, Section 32 states that a court or other tribunal, before determining
whether a way has or has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such
dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration any map, plan, or history of the
locality or other relevant document which is tendered in evidence, and shall give such weight
thereto as the court or tribunal considers justified by the circumstances, including the antiquity
of the tendered document, the status of the person by whom and the purpose for which it was
made or compiled, and the custody in which it has been kept and from which it is produced.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53(3)(c) enables the Definitive Map to be
modified if the County Council discovers evidence which, when considered with all other
relevant evidence available to it, shows that:

(i) a right of way not shown in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to
subsist over land in the area to which the map relates.

(i) a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of a particular description
ought to be there shown as a highway of a different description.

(iii) there is no public right of way over land shown in the map and statement as a highway
of any description, or any other particulars contained in the map and statement require
modification.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53(5) enables any person to apply to the
surveying authority for an order to modify the Definitive Map. The procedure is set out under
WCA 1981 Schedule 14.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 56(1) states that the Definitive Map and
Statement shall be conclusive evidence as to the particulars contained therein, but without
prejudice to any question whether the public had at that date any right of way other than those
rights.

In relation to claims for byways open to all traffic (BOATS), Section 67 of the Natural
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) extinguishes certain rights of way for
mechanically propelled vehicles except for the circumstances set out in sub-sections 2 to 8.
The main exceptions are that:

(a) it is a way whose main use by the public during the period of 5 years ending with
commencement was use for mechanically propelled vehicles;

(b) it was shown on the List of Streets;

(c) it was expressly created for mechanically propelled vehicles;

(d) it was created by the construction of a road intended to be used by such vehicles;

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 6

(e) it was created by virtue of use by such vehicles before 1 December 1930.

Extinguishment of rights for mechanically propelled vehicles also does not apply if, before the
relevant date (20 January 2005), an application was made under section 53(5) of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981, or such an application was determined by a surveying authority, for
an order to modify the definitive map and statement as to show a BOAT.

The judgement in the case of R. (on the application of Winchester College) v Hampshire
County Council (2008) however, found that for such exceptions to be relevant the application
must fully comply with the requirements of paragraph 1 of Schedule 14 to Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981. It is appropriate therefore firstly to determine whether or not the
claimed vehicular rights subsist and, secondly, whether or not any exceptions apply; if
vehicular rights subsist but the exceptions are not engaged then the appropriate status is
restricted byway. Such claims may also be considered for a lower status.

B. Definition of Ratione tenurae Roads

Research into Highway Board, Rural District Council and Parish Council minutes has indicated
that ‘ratione tenurae’ roads were, from the late 19" century types of road expected to be used
by the public, but with the adjacent landowners/occupiers of the road/lane being responsible
for the maintenance of the roads.

Section 25(2) of the Local Government Act 1894 enacted that if a person liable to repair a

highway ‘ratione tenurae’ failed to do so, after being requested by the district council, the
council could repair the highway and recover the expenses from the person liable.

Page 19



Agenda Item 6

1 Proposal 1: Schedule 14 application: Proposed addition of a byway open to all
traffic along Bittadon Lane, Bittadon, as shown between points A-B-C-D-E —F
on plan EEC/PROW/11/67.

Recommendation: That no Modification Order be made in respect of Proposal 1.

1.1

1.1.1

Background

The claim is one of a number of Schedule 14 applications submitted by the Trail Riders
Fellowship in response to the proposed Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006 (NERC Act). The NERC Act would restrict the ways that new rights of ways
for motorised vehicles in the countryside could be created or recorded. A right for
motor vehicles was preserved under the NERC Act if a Schedule 14 Application, that is
compliant with the regulations for Schedule 14 applications under the Wildlife &
Countryside Act 1981, had been made prior to 20 January 2005 or the surveying
authority has made a determination of an application for a Byway open to all traffic
(BOAT) before 2 May 2006.

The application in question was however made in November 2005 which was after
20 January 2005 and therefore does not engage this particular exception to
extinguishment of rights for motorised vehicles.

In line with our policies, determination of the application was deferred, to be dealt with
as part of the parish-by-parish Definitive Map Review, by which the County Council
carries out its statutory duty to keep the definitive map and statement under continuous
review. It was included in the parish review consultation as a proposal for the addition
of a BOAT, as originally applied for, as there are other limited exemptions in which
vehicle rights may be preserved.

1.2 Description of the Route

1.2.1

The route starts at the county road, C582 at Burland Cross, point A in West Down
parish and runs along an unmetalled lane, Bittadon Lane east south eastwards to the
boundary with Marwood parish at point B. It continues along Bittadon Lane through
Marwood parish to the boundary with West Down parish at point C where it passes into
West Down parish again. The lane then passes under the B3230 and then through to
a tributary of the Colam Stream and the boundary with Bittadon parish at point D.
From there it continues into the hamlet of Bittadon where it meets Bittadon Footpath
Nos. 1 and 3 at point E by Bittadon Barton, where it turns southwards along Bittadon
Footpath No. 3 to meet the county road, R1409, at point F.

1.3 Documentary Evidence

1.3.1

1.3.2

Barnstaple Turnpike Trust records, 1763-1879. The statutory processes for turnpike
management were set out under the General Turnpike Acts of 1766, 1773, and 1822.

Turnpike Trusts were bodies set up by individual acts of Parliament, with powers to
collect road tolls for maintaining the principal roads in Britain from the 17th but
especially during the 18th and 19th centuries. At the peak, in the 1830s, over 1,000
trusts administered around 30,000 miles of turnpike road in England and Wales, taking
tolls at almost 8,000 toll-gates and side-bars. Turnpikes declined with the coming of
the railways and then the Local Government Act of 1888 gave responsibility for
maintaining main roads to county councils and county borough councils.

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 6

1.3.3 The Barnstaple Turnpike Trust was set up under an Act of Parliament in 1763 covering
over 100 miles of roads around Barnstaple, with one of its main responsibilities being
the road to llfracombe. Some of the Trust’s returns of accounts have survived; though
those between 1825-1827, when a new turnpike road was constructed (now the
B3230) which affected Bittadon Lane, have not. There is however, a reference in the
return for 1824-5 to £9250/0/0 being paid to the Ilfracombe New Road account. This
road was created by an Act of Parliament under the Public Act, 7 & 8 Geo4 c14 in
1827.

1.3.4 Individual road schemes were promoted by Special Acts. The books of reference and
deposited plans made in the course of the process needed to be of a high standard, as
they formed the basis for legislation and were in the public domain. Consequently,
they were scrutinised by all relevant parties who would not unnecessarily to cede
ownership, rights or responsibilities, as the status of a way had an impact on the cost
of the scheme.

1.3.5 A plan was drawn up by the Barnstaple Turnpike Trust and deposited with the
County’s Clerk of the Peace in 1826, to create a significant new road along the Taw
valley to replace the old Exeter highway. The deposited plan showed the proposed
lines of roads to form part of the Barnstaple Turnpike Trust, and was surveyed by
Charles Bailey, who was employed by five turnpike trusts, at a scale of 3” to 1 mile.

1.3.6 The plan shows the proposal route as the shortest route to the hamlet of Bittadon from
the original turnpike road (now the county road, C582) from Burland Cross at point A.
It is shown as a more substantial highway than what is currently recorded as a county
road between Burland Cross and West Down. It also shows the alignment of the
proposed new road and that of the existing turnpike road. It also shows the current
county road access to Bittadon (R1409), which was part of a longer access route to the
hamlet from the south across formerly unenclosed Swindon Down from Gipsy Corner
in Marwood parish. None of the highways affected were referred to.

1.3.7 In the land valuation particulars for the new turnpike road through Bittadon, no existing
highways are included or referenced, including the current county road (R1409) into
Bittadon. Bittadon Lane, between points A — B — C — D, is shown on the deposited plan
wholly within Marwood parish, which is incorrect. A reference is made under plot 58
owned by Mr Anthony Loveband Esq. that ‘a funnel [was] to be constructed under the
[new turnpike] Road for cattle to pass to water in any proper situation which might be
pointed out by the Proprietor’.

1.3.8 Highway Presentments, 1766-1812. Such records may provide conclusive evidence of
the stopping up or diversion of highways. Presentments or indictments for the
non-repair of highways may also be included and may provide strong evidence of
status where they are confidently identifiable.

1.3.9 There are several relevant references in the locality of the proposal route. In 1772, a
presentment was recorded for the non-repair of the road from llIfordcombe (llfracombe)
to Barnstaple through the parish of West Down, the fine for which was £50 (value
conversion 1770 to 2005 is £3,184.50). In 1809, a presentment was recorded for the
road ‘from a gateway and hedge which divides West Down from Marwood home to
stone which divides West Down from Bittadon. In 1810, there was a presentment for
the road through Bittadon parish from Hoar Down Gate to the road to Berry Down
Gate.

Page 21



Agenda Item 6

1.3.10

1.3.11

1.3.12

1.3.13

1.3.14

1.3.15

1.3.16

1.3.17

1.3.18

1.3.19

There are no references which could be identified as the proposal route, Bittadon
Lane.

West Down Surveyors of Highways Accounts, 1796-1840. Prior to the formation of
District Highway Boards in the early 1860s and the later Rural District Councils (1894)
the responsibility for the maintenance of public highways generally belonged to the
parish and was discharged by elected Surveyors of Highways. Relevant Acts of 1766,
1773 and 1835 included the provision for the use of locally available materials and
there was a statutory requirement upon parishioners to fulfil a fixed annual labour
commitment. The final responsibility for maintenance lay with the local Surveyor of
Highways who was obliged to keep a detailed account of public monies expended.

The parish roads are not frequently named in the records. There are no references
which could be identified as the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between points A - B —
C-D.

Ordnance Survey Draft Drawing — Barnstaple sheet, 1804-5. The proposal route,
Bittadon Lane, between points A—B - C — D — E — F, is shown as a through route and
in the same manner as other local roads. It is the most direct route to Bittadon hamlet
from the original turnpike road which ran north/south past Burland Cross at point A.

The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between points A—B —C — D — E — F is shown as
a cross road and the shortest route from the original turnpike road (now the county
road, C582) into the hamlet of Bittadon. The only alternative to this was an
unenclosed road from Metcombe Cross in Marwood parish across the former common
from the south, known as Swinham/Swindon Down, which is nhow mostly recorded as
Marwood Footpath No. 10 and the county road into Bittadon, R1409. This would have
been only convenient if travelling from Marwood or Barnstaple.

Ordnance Survey mapping, 1809-1962. Ordnance Survey maps do not provide
evidence of the status of this route but rather its physical existence over a number of
years. These early Ordnance Survey maps carried a disclaimer, which states that:
"The representation on this map of a road, track or footpath is no evidence of a right of

way".

On the small scale 1” to 1 mile Ordnance Survey mapping shows the proposal route as
a cross road from the original turnpike road from Burland Cross at point A, and the
most direct route into Bittadon, the only alternative being a road from Metcombe Cross
in Marwood parish across the former common from the south, known as
Swinham/Swindon Down, which is now mostly recorded as Marwood Footpath No. 10
and the county road into Bittadon, R1409.

The proposal route between points A— B — C — D — E — F is shown on the 1st Edition
large scale 25” Ordnance Survey mapping of 1889 as open and available, part of the
local highway network and shown in the same manner as other recorded public
highways. It is annotated ‘Bittadon Lane’. There is a well in the lane between points D
— E, which is only shown on the 1st Edition. It is shown in a similar manner on the 2"
Edition of 1904, with a change of surface at point A, at Burland Cross, as does the
Post War A Edition of 1961, but also with a change of surface at point F at Bittadon.

A double dashed track to the B3230 is shown adjacent to the proposal route, Bittadon
Lane, which partially follows the alignment of Marwood Footpath No. 19, but only the
eastern half.

Cary’s Map, 1821. Besides the Ordnance Survey, Cary was the leading map publisher

in the 19t century. He maintained a high standard of maps, using actual trigonometric

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 6

surveys and other up to date source materials including parliamentary documents,
which was reflected by his employment to survey the 9,000 miles of turnpike roads in
1794.

1.3.20 The proposal route known as Bittadon Lane is shown between points A—B-C -D —
E - F, from the then turnpike road (now the county road, C582) which ran from
Marwood to llfracombe via Burland Cross at point A, near the six mile marker from
Barnstaple.

1.3.21 Greenwood’s Map, 1827. These well-made maps were produced using surveyors and
a triangulation system, and are considered to be reasonably accurate.

1.3.22 The map appeared in 1827 at a scale of one inch to the mile, and includes a route in a
similar position to the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, as a “cross-road”, enclosed for its
entire length as the main route between Burland Cross to Bittadon from the original
turnpike road, now the county road, C582.

1.3.23 Marwood Vestry Minutes, 1827-94. Such records can provide information about the
management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the public highways in the
parish. A public body such as a Vestry had powers only in relation to public highways
through the appointed Surveyor of Highways historically, which they had a
responsibility to maintain. However, many of the roads within the parish were repaired
‘ratione tenurae’ and consequently may not be recorded in these records.

1.3.24 There are no references which could be identified as the proposal route, Bittadon
Lane.

1.3.25 Fullabrook Barton & Baker's Tenement Estate Map, 1833. Estate map were normally
compiled by professional surveyors and are therefore likely to be reasonably accurate.
The plan was surveyed by Richard Passmore of Braunton.

1.3.26 Though the proposal is not shown, the route which is recorded as Braunton uUCR 306
and Marwood Byway No. 29, which ends at Burland Cross, is annotated ‘to Bittadon’.
The only route to Bittadon from Burland Cross was the proposal route, Bittadon Lane.

1.3.27 Bittadon Tithe Map and Apportionment, 1839-40. Tithe Maps were drawn up under
statutory procedures laid down by the Tithe Commutation Act 1836 and subject to local
publicity, limiting the possibility of errors. Their immediate purpose was to record the
official record of boundaries of all tithe areas. Public roads were not titheable and
were sometimes coloured, indicating carriageways or driftways. Tithe maps do not
offer confirmation of the precise nature of the public and/or private rights that existed
over a route shown. Such information was incidental and therefore is not good
evidence of such. Public footpaths and bridleways are rarely shown as their effect on
the tithe payable was likely to be negligible. Routes which are not numbered are
usually included under the general heading of ‘public roads and waste’.

1.3.28 The Bittadon tithe map was surveyed by Charles Cooper of Alverdiscott, Bideford,
matters. The original document is held at the National Archives, with copies for the
parish and diocese held locally.

1.3.29 The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, is shown entering the parish at the boundary with
Marwood at the Colam Stream tributary as an enclosed route into the hamlet of
Bittadon between points D — E — F. It is included within plot 165 — ‘road’ — part of the
Barton, as what is now recorded as the county road, R1409 into Bittadon hamlet from
the new turnpike road, now the B3230.

Page 23



Agenda Item 6

1.3.30

1.3.31

1.3.32

1.3.33

1.3.34

1.3.35

1.3.36

Marwood Tithe Map and Apportionment, 1840-3. Tithe Maps were drawn up under
statutory procedures laid down by the Tithe Commutation Act 1836 and subject to local
publicity, limiting the possibility of errors. Their immediate purpose was to record the
official boundaries of all tithe areas. Roads were sometimes coloured and the
colouring generally indicates carriageways or driftways. Public roads were not
titheable and were sometimes coloured, indicating carriageways or driftways. Tithe
maps do not offer confirmation of the precise nature of the public and/or private rights
that existed over a route shown. Such information was incidental and therefore is not
good evidence of such. Public footpaths and bridleways are rarely shown as their
effect on the tithe payable was likely to be negligible.

The Marwood tithe map is a second class surveyed at a scale of 3 chains to 1 “ by F.
Cattlin, a solicitor of 39 Ely Place, Holborn, London, and is only a legal and accurate
record of tithe matters. Land that was not subject to tithes was generally accepted to
be either public, glebe or crown estates. In many case public roads are coloured
sienna as prescribed by Lieutenant Dawson, a military surveyor with the Ordnance
Survey, to the Tithe Commissioners.

The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, is shown in its entirety as a coloured ‘public road’
between points A — B — C — D, Burland Cross to the Bittadon/Marwood/West Down
parish boundary, open and available, an integral part of the parish highway network,
recorded in a similar manner to other currently recorded public highways. It also
includes the county road into Bittadon hamlet, the R1409, as part of the network.

West Down Tithe Map and Apportionment, 1841-42. Tithe Maps were drawn up under
statutory procedures laid down by the Tithe Commutation Act 1836 and subject to local
publicity, limiting the possibility of errors. Their immediate purpose was to record the
official record of boundaries of all tithe areas. Public roads were not titheable and
were sometimes coloured, indicating carriageways or driftways. Tithe maps do not
offer confirmation of the precise nature of the public and/or private rights that existed
over a route shown. Such information was incidental and therefore is not good
evidence of such. Public footpaths and bridleways are rarely shown as their effect on
the tithe payable was likely to be negligible. Routes which are not numbered are
usually included under the general heading of ‘public roads and waste’.

The West Down tithe map is second class and is therefore only evidence of facts with
direct relevance to tithe matters. The original document is held at the National
Archives, with copies for the parish and diocese held locally.

The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, is shown between points A— B - C - D as a
coloured ‘public road’ and part of the parish highway network, in the same manner as
recorded public highways. All roads in the parish are coloured, regardless of whether
they were public or private. It is depicted with the parish boundary with West Down
running along the middle of Bittadon Lane between points B — C — D to the parish
boundary with Bittadon. At point D where the three parish boundaries meet, the
proposal route is annotated as ‘from Bittadon’.

West Down Vestry minutes, 1841-88. Prior to the formation of District Highway Boards
in the early 1860s and the later Rural District Councils (1894) the responsibility for the
maintenance of public highways generally belonged to the parish and was discharged
by elected Surveyors of Highways. Relevant Acts of 1766, 1773 and 1835 included
the provision for the use of locally available materials and there was a statutory
requirement upon parishioners to fulfil a fixed annual labour commitment. The final
responsibility for maintenance lay with the local Surveyor of Highways who was
obliged to keep a detailed account of public monies expended.

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 6

1.3.37 The parish roads are not frequently named in the records. Those roads which are
specifically referenced do not include the proposal route, Bittadon Lane.

1.3.38 Great Western Railway Extension Exeter to llifracombe Deposited Plan, 1845.
Individual schemes were promoted by Special Acts. The statutory process required for
the authorisation of schemes was exacting, having been set out by parliamentary
standing order and the Railways Clauses Consolidation Act 1845. The book of
reference and deposited plans made in the course of the process needed to be of a
high standard, as they formed the basis for legislation and were in the public domain.
Consequently they were scrutinised by all relevant parties who would not
unnecessarily to cede ownership, rights or responsibilities, as the status of a way had
an impact on the cost of the scheme.

1.3.39 The plan shows the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, for its entire length between points
A-B-C-D-E - F. Where parish roads were directly affected by the plan’s
proposal, it is noted in the Book of Reference, which the proposal route is not, as it
was outside the limits of deviation for the scheme.

1.3.40 Bittadon Vestry Minutes, nd. Such records can provide information about the
management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the public highways in the
parish. A public body such as a Vestry had powers only in relation to public highways
through the appointed Surveyor of Highways historically, which they had a
responsibility to maintain. The historic records could not be discovered, and it is
believed that they may not have survived.

1.3.41 Some modern vestry records dating from the 20™ century have survived, though by
this time, it was not responsible for all parish matters including highways. In particular
these modern records include a letter dated June 1938 regarding the proposed union
of the benefices of Bittadon and West Down, which comments on an unattached
Ordnance Survey map, surveyed in 1886 and revised in 1903. It refers to features on
the map including the proposal route, Bittadon Lane. It comments that it ‘has not been
in existence from the date of the making of the Turnpike Road...... over 100 years...l
can find no-one even the oldest inhabitant who had remember even a cart going along
the same. It is completely overgrown, impassable and invisible as far as Lower
Ayescott. Very much the same applies to the lanes shown...leading from the Church
to Upcott.’

1.3.42 British Newspaper Archive, 1824 onwards. This is a digital copy of many newspapers
across the country. It includes local newspapers such as the Exeter Flying Post and
the North Devon Journal (except 1826). The newspapers included reports on the
proceedings of the Magistrates Petty Sessions, Quarter Sessions and Assizes, along
with those of the various district Highway Boards and Vestrys.

1.3.43 North Devon Journal, 17.01.1861. At the Braunton Divisional Petty Sessions on
16 January 1861, the Marwood Overseers were summoned for neglecting the
highway leading to Bittadon between the stream and the turnpike road (now recorded
as a county road, B3230), and the parish road between Bittadon and Fullabrook, the
proposal route, Bittadon Lane. The matter was adjourned.

1.3.44 Exeter and Plymouth Gazette, 18.01.1861. This reported on the above case, which
was adjourned so that further evidence could be obtained.

1.3.45 North Devon Journal, 31.01.1861. At the Braunton Divisional Petty Sessions on
30t January 1861, the Marwood Overseers case was resumed. The Bench decided
that the road between the stream and the turnpike road (now recorded as the B3230)
near Fry’s Hotel, was not a highway but private property (now the county road into

Page 25



Agenda Item 6

1.3.46

1.3.47

1.3.48

1.3.49

1.3.50

1.3.51

1.3.52

Bittadon hamlet, R1409). The report does not mention the parish road believed to be
the proposal route, Bittadon Lane.

Exeter and Plymouth Gazette, 01.02.1861. This reported on the above case, on which
only one of the roads appears to have been decided upon, which may not be the
proposal route.

Exeter Flying Post, 06.02.1861. This reported on the above case, on which only one
of the roads appears to have been decided upon, which may not be the proposal route,
Bittadon Lane.

North Devon Journal, 16.04.1863. An objection was lodged when the Bittadon Parish
Highways Accounts were presented for approval at the County Magistrates Petty
Sessions on 15" April 1863, as it was alleged that Bittadon Lane, the proposal route,
between points D — F, had been repaired for 8 years at the parish’s expense but
without an order from the vestry. It was noted that the accounts had not been kept in
the prescribed form. The matter was adjourned.

North Devon Journal, 30.04.1863. The above case resumed into the charge that the
Bittadon Surveyor misappropriated funds to repair the private road, known as Bittadon
Lane, the proposal route, and had used his own horses and carts without licence from
the Bench. Witnesses gave evidence of parish repairs on the road for over 20 years,
whilst others stated that any repair costs had been defrayed by the late Mr Brown, the
affected landowner. The Bench decided that Bittadon Lane was not a parish road, but
would approve the year’s accounts.

North Devon Journal, 07.12.1882. At a meeting of the llfracombe District Highway
Board, the principal matter for discussion was the question of the repair of a road
leading from Bittadon to West Down, the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between
points A— B — C — D — E — F, which had been the only road from Bittadon towards
Braunton and the neighbourhood before the new turnpike road, now the B3230, was
cut. There was a discussion regarding who was liable for the repairs, and reference
was made to the 1863 case, when it had been decided that Marwood parish was not
liable. The member looking for the repair of the lane contended the route was public
and that the Board should see the route repaired by whoever was liable. The matter
was adjourned so that the Marwood records could be consulted.

North Devon Journal, 22.03.1883. At a meeting of the llfracombe District Highway
Board, the liability of the Board with regard to the proposal route, Bittadon Lane was
discussed at length, including the details from the 1861 case. Correspondence was
read from residents of Bittadon and Georgeham parishes, along with that from the
Rev. JT Pigot, the rural dean of Fremington. Though in the 1861 case, the magistrates
had decided there was no evidence that Bittadon Lane was a public highway, the
Board’s Chairman recalled that the Board had previously ordered the Surveyor to
repair the road, and that order was still in force. ‘There was not the slightest doubt that
it was a public highway’, though it appeared that it was repaired ‘ratione tenurae’, by
the adjacent occupiers. The Surveyor had served notice on the occupiers in October
1882 to repair Bittadon Lane; some had carried out the required works, others had not.
The Surveyor was ordered to get the road repaired by the occupiers.

North Devon Journal, 19.04.1883. At a meeting of the lifracombe District Highway
Board, the Surveyor state he had served notice on Mr Heyward of Hartnoll Barton to
repair the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, who denied his liability. After much
discussion including the usage and cost of repairs, it was resolved that no further
action would be taken in the matter.

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 6

1.3.53 Ordnance Survey Boundaries Branch, 1883-5. These Ordnance Survey records
include sketch maps, remark books, and inspection journals prepared under the
Ordnance Survey Act 1841. They record original information on public boundaries,
mostly parish boundaries, and related ground features, and bear the marks/signatures
of the meresmen for the parishes on each side of the boundary. Other details included
are the formal notices for the display of the maps, who inspected them and which
sections, any plans they were compared with and any differences identified, and the
result of investigations into such differences.

1.3.54 Doubt regarding the parish boundary alignment between the parishes of Marwood and
West Down was raised by the Marwood Parish Meresman, Thomas Hayward. A
Meresman was a person locally appointed to ascertain the exact boundaries of parish,
and assisted the Ordnance Survey Surveyors’ in their work. The Inspection Journal
detailed the discrepancy, referring to the proposal route, Bittadon Lane.

1.3.55 The Surveyors were informed by the Marwood Meresman that the proposal route,
Bittadon Lane, was considered to be an ‘occupation road’. It was noted that it had not
been repaired in about 50 years. Any repairs that had occurred, had been carried out
by the adjacent occupier in West Down for the portion between points C — D and for
the Marwood portion between points B — C. The Surveyor noted that the proposal
route, Bittadon Lane, had not been divided between points A — B — C — D — E for the
convenience of its repair. This was because adjacent occupiers remembered when
the section between points A — B near Burland Cross was unenclosed on the West
Down side. At one time, the section between points B — C had also been unenclosed
on the Marwood side. In 1884, a resident had known the adjacent land between points
B — C for 50 years, and occupied for 32 years, had never known the road repaired by
either the adjacent occupiers in Marwood parish or by the Marwood Vestry. The
section between points A — B from Burland Cross had apparently belonged to the
adjacent farm in West Down parish and had been repaired by the occupier.

1.3.56 West Down Parish Council Minutes, 1894-1978. The Minutes provide information
about the management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the public
highways in the parish. A public body such as a Parish Council had powers only in
relation to public highways through the appointed Surveyor of Highways historically,
which they had a responsibility to maintain.

1.3.57 There are no references which could be identified as the proposal route, Bittadon
Lane, however what is now recorded as West Down Footpath No. 17/Braunton
Footpath No. 68/Marwood Footpath No. 37 is referred to ending at Bittadon Lane, as
opposed to Burland Cross, in 1946 and 1950.

1.3.58 Marwood Parish Council Minutes, 1894 onwards. The Minutes provide information
about the management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the public
highways in the parish. A public body such as a Parish Council had powers only in
relation to public highways through the appointed Surveyor of Highways historically,
which they had a responsibility to maintain.

1.3.59 There are no references which could be identified as the proposal route, Bittadon
Lane.

1.3.60 Bittadon Parish Meeting minutes, 1894-2009. The Minutes provide information about
the management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the public highways in
the parish. A public body such as a Parish Council or Meeting had powers only in
relation to public highways through the appointed Surveyor of Highways historically,
which they had a responsibility to maintain.

Page 27



Agenda Item 6

1.3.61

1.3.62

1.3.63

1.3.64

1.3.65

1.3.66

1.3.67

1.3.68

1.3.69

1.3.70

1.3.71

The historic records of the Bittadon Parish meeting are not known to have survived.

Barnstaple Rural District Council Minutes, 1893-1974. The Minutes provide
information about the management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the
public highways in the parish. A public body such as a District Council had powers
only in relation to public highways through the appointed Surveyor historically, which
they had a responsibility to maintain.

There are a number of references to the highways in Bittadon parish in these records,
but there is little detail, and none relate to the proposal route, Bittadon Lane.

Devon County Council Main Roads Committee, 19"-20™ century. The Minutes provide
information about the management of the route and the Council’s views regarding the
public highways in the parish. A public body such as a County Council had powers
only in relation to public highways through the appointed Surveyor historically, which
they had a responsibility to maintain.

At a meeting of the Committee on the 12t February 1909, it was resolved that a
contribution was paid of £50 (worth £2,853 in 2005) for works regarding the cattle
creep at Burland, West Down, (actually Marwood) under the new turnpike road, now
the B3230.

Finance Act, 1909-10. The Finance Act imposed a tax on the incremental value of
land which was payable each time it changed hands. In order to levy the tax a
comprehensive survey of all land in the UK was undertaken between 1910 and 1920.
It was a criminal offence for any false statement to be knowingly made for the purpose
of reducing tax liability. If a route is not included within any hereditament there is a
possibility that it was considered a public highway, though there may be other reasons
to explain its exclusion.

The proposal route is excluded between point A at Burland Cross and point D at the
tributary of the Colam Stream, where it passes through the parishes of West Down and
Marwood. The remainder which falls within Bittadon parish is included within
hereditament 1, which also covers part of Marwood parish.

The Field Book entry for hereditament 1 in Bittadon parish refers to an easement for a
footpath between farms. It also refers to a public footpath over Ordnance Survey
number 153 at Narracott. There is no deduction for either right of way, nor what is now
recorded as Marwood Footpath No. 19 or Bittadon Footpath Nos. 1 and 3. A plan in
the Field Book entry shows the proposal route as a ‘road’, as is the continuation of the
county road from the main road to the hamlet of Bittadon (R1409) along what is the
start of Bittadon Footpath No. 1.

Bittadon, Marwood & West Down Freehold Estate Sale, 1918. Sales documents were
compiled when a public auction took place. They were drawn up by the landowner or
their agent. The public roads will have been excluded from such sales. It is also likely
that if a lot has an easement or public right of way over it, it is likely to be detailed in
the particulars. Sales particulars should be treated with some caution. The art of
embellishment in advertising is not a newly acquired skill.

The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between points D — E — F, is included within the
sale within lot 2, Bittadon Barton, plot 26, road.

Bacon’s map, circa. 1920s. This map were designed for tourists and cyclists with the
roads classified for driving and cycling purposes. Its classification includes First Class
roads, Secondary roads which were in good condition, Indifferent roads that were

Page 28



Agenda Iltem 6

passable for cyclists and other uncoloured roads that were considered inferior and not
to be recommended. Additionally, Footpaths and Bridleways were marked on the
maps as a pecked line symbol. Cyclists were confined to public carriage roads until
1968. The small scale does not permit all existing routes to be shown, omitting some
more minor routes. The purpose of these maps was to guide the traveller along the
routes most suitable for their mode of transport.

1.3.72 The map is too small scale to depict the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, or what is now
recorded as the county road between the former turnpike road, the B3230 and the
hamlet of Bittadon.

1.3.73 Bartholomew’s maps, 1920s onwards. These maps were designed for tourists and
cyclists with the roads classified for driving and cycling purposes. They were used by
and influenced by the Cyclists Touring Club founded in 1878 which had the
classification of First Class roads, Secondary roads which were in good condition,
Indifferent roads that were passable for cyclists and other uncoloured roads that were
considered inferior and not to be recommended. Additionally, Footpaths and
Bridleways were marked on the maps as a pecked line symbol. Cyclists were confined
to public carriage roads until 1968. The small scale does not permit all existing routes
to be shown, omitting some more minor routes. The purpose of these maps was to
guide the traveller along the routes most suitable for their mode of transport.

1.3.74 Maps dating from 1924 and 1932 show the proposal route only where it runs through
Bittadon parish between points D — E — F. It is depicted as an Inferior Road and not to
be recommended, which is the lowest category the maps show. The majority of those
roads shown in the parish are included in that category.

1.3.75 Definitive Map Parish Surveys, 1950s. The compilation process set out in the National
Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 involved a substantial amount of work
and such records are considered a valuable source of information. The rights of way
included in the process had to pass through draft, provisional and definitive stages with
repeated public consultations.

1.3.76 There is no reference to the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, in the Bittadon, West Down
or Marwood surveys. The West Down parish survey form for path 17 (actually
recorded for the majority of its length as Braunton Footpath No. 68 and Marwood
Footpath No. 37) as going ‘to Bittadon’.

1.3.77 Definitive Map and Statement, 1957. The Statement describes Marwood Footpath No.
19 as running through fields on the ‘south side of Bittadon Lane’, while the Statement
for Marwood Footpath No. 37 describes it starting at the ‘county road C582 at Bittadon
Lane’, as opposed to Burland Cross.

1.3.78 Bittadon Barton sale, 1993. Sales particulars should be treated with special caution,
as the art of embellishment in advertising is not a newly acquired skill. Nevertheless, if
a public right of way were admitted, a convincing reason for disregarding the entry
would need to be provided before it could be entirely discounted.

1.3.79 The proposal route, Bittadon Lane was not included in the sale.

1.3.80 Route Photographs, 2009 and 2014. Site photographs of the proposal route show that
it is open and available, though at times it has been a bit overgrown.

Page 29



Agenda Item 6

1.3.81 Land Registry,2016. The proposal route, Bittadon lane, is excluded from land holdings

between points A — B — C — D where it runs through the parishes of West Down and
Marwood, but included between points D — E — F within Bittadon parish.

1.4 Landowner Evidence

1.4.1

14.2

143

1.4.4
1.4.5

1.4.6

Messers Ayres of Crackaway Barton have been farm tenants since 1896 and have
more recently taken ownership of land on the north side of the route. They have
believed for over 65 years that the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, to be public for the
use of local farmers and residents of Bittadon parish with horses and carts and farm
stock. The public have been seen using the route. They have not made a Section
31(6) deposit. They have not challenged anyone using the route or told them it was
not public.

Mr Gould has tenanted and subsequently owned no. 1 Bittadon Cottages which is
adjacent to the proposal route since 1965. He has known the route for 51 years and
does not believe the route to be public. He states on his evidence form that he has not
seen anyone using the route. However, he has told about 5 people that the route was
not public and has referred a person to the occupiers of Bittadon Barton, who own the
Bittadon end of the route between points D — E — F. Mr Gould has not made a Section
31(6) deposit. He believes that the lane originally provided access to Bittadon Barton
before the B3230 was constructed.

Mr and Mrs Perkins have owned no. 2 Bittadon Cottages which is adjacent to the
proposal route since 2008, but live in Wallingford, Oxfordshire. They do not believe
the proposed route to be public and have not seen anyone using it, nor have they
made a Section 31(6) deposit. The water supply for the hamlet is on the route and
they would be concerned if this was affected.

Mr Crocombe of Burland Farm did not complete a landowner evidence form.

Mr and Mrs Balacke of Bittadon Barton did not complete a landowner evidence form.

Mr Houlford of Church Farm did not complete a landowner evidence form.

1.5 Discussion

1.5.1

1.5.2

153

Statute — Section 31 Highways Act 1980. There does not appear to be a specific date
on which the public’s right to use the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, has been called
into question. No recorded users have been challenged or notices erected against use
by any means.

As there is no specific date of calling into question or user evidence, the proposal
cannot be considered under statute law. However, the proposal route, Bittadon Lane,
may still be proven to exist as a public right of way at common law. Evidence of
dedication by the landowners can be express or implied and an implication of
dedication may be shown at common law if there is evidence, documentary, user or
usually a combination of both from which it may be inferred that a landowner has
dedicated a highway and that the public has accepted the dedication.

A claim for a right of way may also exist at common law. Evidence of dedication by the
landowners can be express or implied and an implication of dedication may be shown
at common law if there is evidence, documentary, user or usually a combination of
both from which it may be inferred that a landowner has dedicated a highway and that
the public has accepted the dedication.

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 6

1.5.4 Common Law. On consideration of the proposal for Bittadon Lane at common law, the
historical mapping shows that the proposal route has physically existed between points
A -B - C - D - E - F as the shortest route between Bittadon and the surrounding
area, since at least 1804 when recorded on the Ordnance Survey’s 1” to 1 mile scale
mapping, as a cross road in a similar manner to the currently recorded county road into
Bittadon (R1409), which is part of an older route from Metcombe Cross on Swindon
Down in Marwood parish, now recorded for the most part as Marwood Footpath No.
10. Itis shown in a similar way on Cary’s Map of 1821 and Greenwood’s Map of 1827,
from near the 6 mile marker on the original turnpike road at Burland Cross.

1.5.5 The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between points A— B - C — D — E — F is shown as
the most direct route between the original turnpike road between Barnstaple and
lIfracombe at Burland Cross (5 direction crossroads) and Bittadon. There was an
alternative route from Metcombe Cross, Marwood, but only if travelling from the
direction of Marwood and Barnstaple.

1.5.6 In 1826, a deposited plan by the Barnstaple Turnpike Trust proposes a new turnpike
road between Barnstaple and llfracombe (now the B3230) to follow the river rather
than the original road via Burland Cross at point A, at the end of the proposal route,
Bittadon Lane. The relevant Book of Reference however does not refer to any existing
highways shown on the plan, only the land. The valuation papers relating to land
affected by the new road alignment record the proposed construction of ‘a
tunnel...under the Road [the B3230 as shown on the plan] for cattle to pass to water’.
The cattle creeps are on either side of the proposal route, Bittadon Lane between
points C — D, under the main road at a higher level than the lane to allow access to the
Colam Stream from the fields. In 1827 the deposited plan of 1826 was enacted by
Parliament, and the new turnpike road (now the B3230) was completed over the next
couple of years. This is interesting as at that time, there could be severe financial
penalties from the local magistrates if cattle were on the highway, unless going to
market. It implies that the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between points A—B - C —
D — E may have been considered a ‘highway’ used by the public, which cattle would
not be permitted on.

1.5.7 The construction of the new turnpike road, which is now recorded as the B3230,
Barnstaple to llfracombe road, appears to have affected the access routes into
Bittadon. The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, was bridged over, with cattle creeps
either side for the movement of livestock between points C — D. What used to be the
continuation of Marwood Footpath No. 10 became the main access route into Bittadon,
now recorded as a county road (R1409), from the new turnpike road, now the B3230.

1.5.8 All the 3 relevant Tithe Maps are second class and only evidence of tithe information.
Both the West Down and Marwood maps show the proposal route between points A —
B — C — D as a coloured ‘public road’ whilst Bittadon includes the route between points
D - E - F in plot 165, ‘road’, part of Bittadon Barton. What is now the county road into
Bittadon from the B3230 (R1409), is also included in the Barton as plot 160 — ‘road’.
This different treatment is mirrored in the Finance Act records, with the section of the
proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between A — B — C — D, being excluded from
hereditaments, whilst the remainder between points D — E — F is included in
hereditament 1 covering parts of Bittadon and Marwood parishes. It does not have
any reductions for Marwood Footpath No. 19 or Bittadon Footpath Nos. 1 and 3, or
what is now the county road, R1409 between Bittadon and the B3230.

1.5.9 The proposal route, Bittadon Lane, between points A - B — C — D — E — F, does not
appear in the various Vestry and other historic highway authority records. This does
not mean that the route could not be public, just that it was not repaired by the relevant
parishes. An additional complication is the variation in the portrayal of the parish

Page 31



Agenda Item 6

1.5.10

1.5.11

1.5.12

boundary between West Down and Marwood in relation to the proposal route, Bittadon
Lane, between points A— B — C — D. This variation and the subsequent dispute which
arose in 1883-5 when the Ordnance Survey Boundaries Branch were carrying out a
survey, highlights another reason why the proposal route may not appear in the
historic parish and highways records.

Though the original llfracombe District Highway Board records and the majority of the
local petty Session records have not survived, their meetings were reported on in the
North Devon Journal. A number of reports featured the proposal route, Bittadon Lane,
as well as the route between the new turnpike road (now the B3230) and Bittadon, now
a county road (R1409). It appears that both routes were neglected and not considered
by the local magistrates in 1863 to be ‘parish roads’, roads repairable by a parish,
particularly Marwood. It appears that neither Bittadon nor West Down parishes were
summoned before the local magistrates for non-repair of these routes. When
subsequently a landowner denied his liability to repair in 1883, the Highway Board did
not take any enforcement action.

The reports of the Highway Board meetings show that many public highways in this
area were repaired ‘ratione tenurae’, by adjacent landowners and occupiers, and it
appears that the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, may have been included in this
category, though the evidence is not considered sufficient to demonstrate this. The
Ordnance Survey Boundaries Branch records contain inconsistencies about whether
repairs were done and by whom. This inconsistency is reflected throughout the
documentary evidence.

Current landowner evidence dates back to the 1940s, with knowledge dating back to
1896. It documents use of the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, by local farmers and
residents in the area with horse and cart, though a more recent landowner has
challenged several people over the years.

1.6 Conclusion

1.6.1

1.6.2

No user evidence was submitted in support of the Schedule 14 application or received
subsequently. The documentary evidence, whilst suggesting that the proposal route
may have been considered a public highway two hundred years ago, is insufficient to
demonstrate this, with much inconsistency between those records which have
survived. Reports of the Petty Sessions showed that local magistrates weighed up
evidence both in support and rebuttal of the proposal route, Bittadon Lane, as a public
highway in the 19t century, and found that it was not. Key sources such as the records
of the Bittadon Vestry, the Surveyors of Highways records, some Petty Sessions, and
the lifracombe District Highway Board do not survive.

It is therefore recommended no Order be made to add a byway between points A — B —

C — D — E - F, along Bittadon Lane, in respect of Proposal 1, as shown on drawing
number EEC/PROW/11/67.

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 6

Crackaway |  \ \
Plantation ‘,\
o
PR |
i % ) Bittadon |
est Down parish | e
parish 1 ig % \ | 1-;3‘5
-_._______________-_-_-_-1 ~ Y A \\\ |
\ >
D7\ Y v
“*\ Cottages x|
37 =g 8y | ~\\Bittador
- Burland g oo, _ N\ Barton,
ke \;"T}p' Cross . “'5' e AW ) '-1. ’ s
A PR - _ -
S 0lpag, W 2> » : &
19 N 5 PW
Qtiginal Marwood .
E I uilgn revar pariSh 5 : i
frgiie Toau » o f"
wa N\ Bit
turnpik Lol 11‘1
Barnstap (B323 3 I ‘1‘1
fne ) { A
Tk .10
- Issues_| - =7 . !
= Burland South || Th N\ N
Burland 1 |
(fnrmedy{ :
Burland” !
Plantation '
fMamood\.,
_ otpath 10
map ref SS 5341/5441 e v, g o, SopyghE v T o o S ol penseengs e s 1000718785
Devon County Council drawing number EEC/PROW/11/67
Definitive Map Review -
. . date May 2017
Bittadon with Marwood & West Down E 1‘53'000
Proposal 1: Schedule 14 application - scale
Claimed byway along Bittadon Lane drawnby  NSC
MNotation
lai A-B-C-D-E-F Meg Booth A
Calmf—:d_byway C (approx 660m) Meoe Acting Chief Officer Devon ﬁﬂ?@v
Existing footpaths =~ ========= for Highways, County Council /'™
Existing byways e Infrastructure Development & Waste

Page 33






Agenda Item 7

HIW/17/50

Public Right of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Definitive Map Review 2016-17
Parish of Bridgerule

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that it be noted that the Definitive Map Review
has been completed in the parish of Bridgerule and no modifications are required.

1. Summary

The report examines the Definitive Map Review in the parish of Bridgerule.

2. Background

The original survey, under s. 27 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act,
1949, revealed no public rights of way were recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement
for Bridgerule Parish Council with the relevant date of 1 July 1958.

No Legal Event Modification Orders have been made for the parish.

The reviews of the Definitive Map, under s. 33 of the 1949 Act, which commenced in the
1970s but were never completed, produced no proposals for change to the map in the parish

of Bridgerule at that time.

The Limited Special Review of Roads Used as Public Paths (RUPPS), also carried out in the
1970s, did not affect this parish.

3. Proposals

There are no proposals.

4, Consultations

The current Review began in October 2016 with a public meeting held in the Village Hall in
Bridgerule. A full public consultation was carried out in February and April 2017 and the

review was advertised in the parish and in the North Devon Journal.

The responses were:

County Councillor B Parsons - no comment
Torridge Devon District Council - no proposals
Bridgerule Parish Council - no comment
British Horse Society - no comment
Byways and Bridleways Trust - no comment
Country Land & Business Association - no comment
Open Spaces Society - no comment

Page 35



Agenda ltem 7

Ramblers' Association - no comment
Trail Riders' Fellowship - no comment
5. Financial Considerations

Financial implications are not a relevant consideration to be taken into account under the
provision of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The Authority’'s costs associated with
Modification Orders, including Schedule 14 appeals, the making of Orders and subsequent
determinations, are met from the general public rights of way budget in fulfilling our statutory
duties.

6. Legal Considerations

The implications/consequences of the recommendation(s) have been taken into account in
the preparation of the report.

7. Risk Management Considerations
No risks have been identified.
8. Equality, Environmental Impact and Public Health Considerations

Equality, environmental impact or public health implications have, where appropriate under
the provisions of the relevant legislation have been taken into account.

9. Conclusion
It is recommended that the Review be noted for Bridgerule parish.

Should any valid claim be made in the next six months it would seem sensible for it to be
determined promptly rather than be deferred.

10. Reasons for Recommendations
To undertake the County Council’s statutory duty under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and to progress the

parish by parish review in the Torridge district area.

Meg Booth
Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Division: Holsworthy Rural

Local Government Act 1972

List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Caroline Gatrell

Telephone No: 01392 383240

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Correspondence file: Bridgerule 2016-17 CG/DMR/BRIDG
€g260517pra

sc/cr/DMR Parish of Bridgerule

03 260617

Page 36



Agenda Iltem 8

HIW/17/51

Public Rights of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Definitive Map Review
Parish of Sparkwell

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that no Modification Order be made in respect
of the proposal to amend Bridleway No. 24, Sparkwell, and it be noted that the
Definitive Map Review has been completed in the parish of Sparkwell and no
modifications are required to be made.

1. Introduction

The report examines the Definitive Map Review in the parish of Sparkwell in South Hams
District.

2. Background

The original survey under s. 27 of the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act
1949 revealed twenty-one footpaths and four bridleways, which were recorded on the
Definitive Map and Statement with a relevant date of 11 October 1954.

The review of the Definitive Map, under s. 33 of the 1949 Act, which commenced in the
1970s, but was never completed, produced no proposals for change to the map in the
parish.

The Limited Special Review of Roads Used as Public Paths (RUPPS), also carried out in the
1970s, did not affect this parish.

The following agreements and Orders have been made and confirmed:

South Hams District Council Public Path Diversion Order 1975, Footpath No.12 Sparkwell
South Hams District Council Public Path Diversion Order 1982, Footpath No.12 Sparkwell
South Hams District Council Public Path Diversion Order 1982, Footpath No.12 Sparkwell
Devon County Council, Definitive Map Modification Order 1997 Bridleway No.35 Sparkwell
Devon County Council Public Path Diversion Order 1993 Footpath Nos. 9 & 10 Sparkwell
Devon County Council Public Path Creation Agreement 2009 Bridleway No.36, Sparkwell
South Hams District Council Town & Country Planning Act Diversion Order 2010 Footpath
No.12, Sparkwell at Lee Mill

South Hams District Council Town & Country Planning Act Diversion Order 2010, Footpath
Nos. 11 & 13 Sparkwell

Devon County Council Footpath No.23, Sparkwell Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map
modification Order 2013

Devon County Council Public Path Creation Agreements 2014 Bridleways 37, 39 & 40
Sparkwell

Devon County Council Town & Country Planning Act S.257 Stopping up Order 2013
Bridleway Nos.29, 30 & 31 Sparkwell

Page 37



Agenda Item 8

Devon County Council Town & Country Planning Act S.257 Stopping Up Order 2014
Sparkwell Bridleway Nos.29,30 & 31

Devon County Council Town & Country Planning Act S.257 Stopping Up and Public Path
Diversion Order 2014 Footpath Nos. 17,18,21 & 22 Sparkwell and Bridleway No.35

Devon County Council Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map Modification Order 2014,
Footpath No.4, Sparkwell

Devon County Council & Town &Country Planning Act S.257 Bridleway Nos. 57, Shaugh
Prior and 39, Sparkwell Public Path Diversion Order 2016

Devon County Council Bridleway No.41, Sparkwell and No.72, Shaugh Prior Public Path
Creation Agreement 2017

Legal Event Modification Orders will be made for these changes, where necessary, under
delegated powers in due course.

The current Review began in October 2016 with a public meeting held in the Sparkwell
Village Hall, and was well attended by members of the public, the parish clerk and parish
councillors, County Councillor John Hart and representatives from Wolf Minerals UK Ltd.

3. Proposals

One suggestion has been noted where there is an irregularity between the Definitive Map
and Statement for the southern end of Bridleway No.24, Sparkwell. The details are
discussed in Appendix 1.

4. Consultations

A public consultation was carried out in May 2017.

The responses were as follows:

County Councillor J Hart - no comment
South Hams District Council - no comment
Sparkwell Parish Council - no objection
British Horse Society - no comment
Byways and Bridleways Trust - no comment
Country Land & Business Association - no comment
NFU - no comment
Open Spaces Society - no comment
Ramblers' Association - no proposals
Trail Riders' Fellowship - no comment
5. Financial Considerations

Financial implications are not a relevant consideration to be taken into account under the
provision of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The Authority’s costs associated with
Modification Orders, including Schedule 14 appeals, the making of Orders and subsequent
determinations, are met from the general public rights of way budget in fulfilling our statutory
duties.

6. Legal Considerations

The implications/consequences of the recommendation(s) have been taken into account in
the preparation of the report.

Page 38



Agenda Iltem 8

7. Risk Management Considerations

No risks have been identified.

8. Equality, Environmental Impact and Public Health Considerations

Equality, environmental impact or public health implications have, where appropriate under
the provisions of the relevant legislation, been taken into account in the preparation of the
report.

9. Conclusion

It is recommended that no Modification Order be made in respect of the suggestion for
modifying the Definitive Map in the parish of Sparkwell and that members note that the

Definitive Map Review has been completed in this parish.

Should any further valid claim with sufficient evidence be made in the next six months, it
would seem reasonable for it to be determined promptly rather than be deferred.

10. Reasons for Recommendations
To undertake the County Council’s statutory duty under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous review and to progress the

parish by parish review in the South Hams District area.

Meg Booth
Acting Chief Officer Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Divisions: Bickleigh and Wembury

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Emily Spurway
Room No: ABG Lucombe House, County Hall, Topsham Road, Exeter

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Correspondence files 2016 - date ES/DMR/Sparkwell
es080617pra

sc/cr/DRM Parish of Sparkwell

04 260617

Page 39



Agenda Item 8

Appendix |
To HIW/17/51

Background
A. Basis of Claims

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53 (5) enables any person to apply to the
surveying authority for an order to modify the Definitive Map. The procedure is set out under
WCA 1981 Schedule 14.

Common Law presumes that at some time in the past the landowner dedicated the way to
the public either expressly, the evidence of the dedication having since been lost, or by
implication, by making no objection to the use of the way by the public.

The Highways Act 1980, Section 31 (1) states that where a way over any land, other than a
way of such a character that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any
presumption of dedication, has actually been enjoyed by the public as of right and without
interruption for a full period of 20 years, the way is deemed to have been dedicated as a
highway unless there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that period to
dedicate it.

The Highways Act 1980, Section 32 states that a court or other tribunal, before determining
whether a way has or has not been dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such
dedication, if any, took place, shall take into consideration any map, plan, or history of the
locality or other relevant document which is tendered in evidence, and shall give such weight
thereto as the court or tribunal considers justified by the circumstances, including the
antiquity of the tendered document, the status of the person by whom and the purpose for
which it was made or compiled, and the custody in which it has been kept and from which it
is produced.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 53[3] [c] enables the Definitive Map and
Statement to be modified if the County Council discovers evidence which, when considered
with all other relevant evidence available to it, shows:

(i) that a right of way not shown in the map and statement subsists or is reasonably alleged
to subsist over land in the area to which the map relates.

(i) that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of a particular description
ought to be there shown as a highway of a different description; or

(iii) that there is no public right of way over land shown in the map and statement as a
highway of any description, or any other particulars contained in the map and statement
require modification.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Section 56[1] states that the Definitive Map and
Statement shall be conclusive evidence as to the particulars contained therein but without
prejudice to any question whether the public had at that date any right of way other than
those rights.

Page 40



Agenda Iltem 8

1. Suggestion 1: Bridleway No. 24, Sparkwell — Anomaly between the Definitive
Map and the Definitive Statement

To clarify the extent of the southern point of Bridleway No.24, Sparkwell in relation to
its junction with the county road (highway maintainable at public expense) near
Loughtor Corn Mill (Loughtor Mill) as described in the Definitive Statement and as
shown between points A — B on drawing HIW/PROW/17/31.

The continuation over section B — C is in the administrative area of Plymouth City
and outside of Devon County Council’s highway obligation.

Recommendation: That no Modification Order be made to amend the Definitive
Map in respect of Bridleway No. 24.

1.1 Background

1.1.1 During the course of the current Definitive Map review, existing public rights of way in
the parish were checked and the line of Bridleway No. 24 appeared to stop short of
the county road at Loughtor Corn Mill. The Definitive Map shows the bridleway
apparently stopping approximately 130 metres north of the county road, just south of
The Lodge by Binnicliff Wood at point A. Bridleway No.24 was formerly in the
administrative parish of Plympton St Mary and is now in the administrative district of
the South Hams.

1.2 Description of the route

1.2.1 This path is a bridleway starting from Loughtor Mill Green Road opposite Loughtor
Mill and continues in a northerly direction along a lane, known as Park Lane to join
the minor county road known as Tweenway Road in the parish of Sparkwell.

1.3 Documentary Evidence

1.3.1 Definitive Map Statement: - Bridleway No.24, Sparkwell - relevant date 11 October
1954

The Definitive Statement for this route states:

Original Designation: Parish of Plympton St Mary
Current Designation: Parish of Sparkwell

From: Loughtor Mill Green Road
To: Tweenaway Road

Description: This path is a Bridleway. It starts at Loughtor Mill Green Road
(Unclassified County Road) opposite Corn Mills, and proceeds north along a Private
Accommodation Road (not repairable by the inhabitants at large) until it joins
Tweenway Road (Unclassified County Road)

1.3.2 Highway records

Plympton District Highways Handover maps up to 1947.

Page 41



Agenda Item 8

1.3.3

The 6inch map sheet 118 S.E. shows the route A - B - C as coloured blue from the
word “Lodge” to the county road, coloured yellow, at Loughtor Corn Mills.

The mileage Road Book that accompanies the handover maps also shows sheet
188.SE road 20 as “From CLIII 36 to Lodge Binnicliff Wood, 0.10” in the remarks
section it records it as a “Cul — de — Sac”.

This indicates that the route A — B — C was considered to be a highway maintainable
at public expense by Plympton Rural District Council.

Devon County Council Land Charges Map.

The Land Charges department at County Hall hold the public records of Devon’s
highways maintainable at public expense. These records indicate that the section A
— B is coloured blue, indicating a highway maintainable at public expense. There is
no indication that this section of public highway has been stopped up.

Rebuttal Evidence
No rebuttal evidence has been received.
Discussion

There is no provision in statute for deciding whether, in the case of conflict, the map

or statement takes precedence. Where there appears to an irregularity between the
map and statement, the Definitive Map Statement can provide clear written evidence
of the line of the right of way in relation to other described features.

Whilst assessing the documentary evidence for this suggestion, it became apparent
that there was a gap between the south end of Bridleway No.24, Sparkwell and the
county road at Loughtor (Corn) Mill. Initially it was considered that the Definitive Map
had been drawn in error and did not reflect the bridleway continuing south to join the
county road at Loughtor Mill.

However, the Definitive Statement for Bridleway No.24, Sparkwell is precise in
detailing the junction of the bridleway and the unclassified county road, Loughtor Mill
Green Road which is clearly described as opposite to the Corn Mills, located on the
county road to Plympton.

On examination of handover maps for Devon, in particular Plympton Rural District
Council, the section A — B — C on the plan HIW/PROW/17/31 corresponds to the
section of public road called Loughtor Mill Green Road. This is reflected in the
Mileage Book recording the additional mileage of the road and that it was a cul —de —
sac. These records indicate that the route A — B — C was recorded on successive
highway maintenance records and is considered to be a county road. The section A
— B in Sparkwell has been omitted in error from the County Council’s digitised Land
Charges records.

Conclusion

It is concluded that the southern end of Bridleway No. 24, Sparkwell joins an
unclassified county road. It is recommended therefore, that no Modification Order be
made to amend the Definitive Map in relation to this suggestion.

In addition the County Council’s digitised Land Charges records will be amended to

reflect the section A- B as a highway maintainable at public expense and Plymouth
City Council will be advised of the same findings for the section C — B.

Page 42



¢ obed

Shgiiabiniy it ati st rstust ot ebiateatiatiatiabiat st sk ket eat it abnatiite e ita b it e it e it R
l“e_{l"t'n‘,_v'ﬁ'-‘, $idatEatfirtitatitatitety ‘l’l‘ 'n',r'x{r'n’l'n‘v'; R A A R AR DA A U U U

v,
(N
witte e, i

QRN n,a (AR l'tl AR =
(anen
't

ORI T |‘|‘e' ‘t'1 (4 fibyhed :-‘n i X
lhriies "’:‘u A k‘ 1 i AR
PR AN G :. sy

Ll

‘ ’ l b
223 2E ) ot o8 e Wi
Hletitetitett
Tat

X
et ‘w':‘r'. :'n,v'
al

Pl TR
et e Rt s "'1";'1"'--,~ ALY it e (B
hEhtead Bl ‘l ranan g N n By, 'l i
slyatpatiatyatiefiat st el el ol ¥ ivra., T
e dneere i it e e ik e ol el S R e iie ety
dalitetls et e s e e e e e W
8, el ek MR A RN ge'n”“'

il A ) iy
i B

G“"“"’L““‘i!“l‘“ | : D R 0 0O
2y WQ?"'Q*Q" ¢ - it __’“ n“u"&"@“u QnQnQnQnQanngngu~ ’"'\“L',\d'\&'(:l 'j"‘ﬁ"’r" l")‘
FORERORTRYE = BN :
SR Rayyame 4
OQSQSQS x o )
Q"ﬂ‘?uqu“u uﬂi} %0 i
%) Y \"’n*"‘;\“n V(Y \”j”"\"‘"ﬁ 2 "’:\ L]"I'\"I\"J\"ﬁ"l
(R (80 S S W B N W B S S W 3 ) (5,
0RO e e e \,Qmﬂw],@ 2OROR0RT wﬁc,ﬁm AP
; 5 Q,E‘\.EQBQ,E& ‘Q:.‘QQ"'\L!‘E. ‘AQZ'O,'*LJ"'“’:'”U Qgﬂ_f” D.ﬂQ“ ,'“,w
(SR oM PR S RO PR AN m%ﬂ"‘ w“u“ﬂ"ﬂ fa "wﬂ“‘*‘
Sof00ltaatatntnntan %00 %S
(S L St S SO 5‘:‘5‘,“9,‘910 : 5 T Tasies
!;l“.L:“. ¢ ,-.Qa.?‘":gngnﬁug‘D-rl‘r\mgmgwq lquvlﬂ‘mﬁhkldg:‘vnwodmmﬂmV 00y H
o Bt t R SOR0R0o0RC ].anmg,‘ B00RnE 00 f*
0 PRt - _,nag.eg.(g.w«m\.,ﬁc 0
"0%0%g AR P
02080 T
SaEnk g -
.,m,%;.‘;\:! f;“:‘.'
a;x‘* ‘%".Q;u { Q«.“Q Sotas
sﬁcﬁ 00 nggga FOS%0%
oS0ty qgggqj%g%
/ AR TRt (SRS
.Gr) Q n%?\g %QQQQQ RS NN =
0o0P0° 000 o O g, LY
Py .@.gzqg» .angqalﬁ:k} W gﬁq % Q%an‘..c..n-- m—— u"’ﬁf&a QQQQQQQQQC
A R SRR T NS u-u-*\*’a‘-’d-'”a“*w OOCEARARARHRLEEA
oo’ Q‘i@“ offarat R Eg (%" 0S0%0F T AT TA A RRA TGy
Fofeae QL* «\c JEARAR A = e"‘n R a ST i ‘c} AR 0\0 AR AR AR AR AR AR AN
u w\uuw\g (RSt .Q&Qslt.h (X Ll l‘ul-.;;,tls‘i.k.kksl
..ﬁuQ@Qw\.‘QaQ SACARASAS, o gn*‘ fas}@qﬁ\a SR gl SR Q Q RSN SARARARARARA SRS
ko8 QR R R0 s Q 0 ce ! QD WPRE0 0 T A
r‘; G0 :D:GQ & ?Q?@Q [ -, -).5' (=) Q"GQGQQ (=2 QK“QQ i Q . QQQQSE &" " i :
O u‘wu" .Q‘.;:Q'\Q"\"s} 0f0aR0%c0
i G uz u @G SR »
“of0’pdalnfoliofy o oy :

ar\]é}g&gw“‘ﬂ\c Qn_
JG,Y...Q Pﬁf@“@ ~
FrSnenenRneney

Ay A
o ggwa 0%0%0%0 «m 0%0%0%0%
0 ﬁe e 0%0%0%g 8600 Q"‘n‘h%%%

Locatlon Plan a ;‘3@‘» :
i n@.\‘:‘n‘?n‘%\ A | A a“a RO ARARARARARARARARAR

ﬂ 5T ’WQ.I-M

SX 55 57 1 onm rid Reproduced from Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office & Crown copyright
] 9 Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019783

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL Drawing number HIW/PROW/17/31

. e - . Date May 2017
Definitive Map Review -Informal consultation Scale 1: 2000 (at Ad)

Sparkwell Drawn by ES

Notation . o s i
Correction of Definitive Map anomaly omission ~— —1—1—1—i approx 60metres Devon
Meg Booth County Council
Existing Bridleway No.24 Sparkwell ] e} Acting Chief Officer: Highways, Infrastructure Development &
Waste

g wa)| epuaby






Agenda Item 9

HIW/17/52

Public Rights of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Public Inquiry, Informal Hearing and Written Representation Decisions; Directions and
High Court Appeals

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: Itis recommended that the report be noted.
1. Summary

Since the last Committee the following decisions and directions have been received from the
Secretary of State/High Court. Plans are attached in the appendix to this report.

Modification Orders

Order/Schedule 14 Application

Decision/Direction

@ Footpath No. 2, Culmstock (part), Footpath
No. 38, Culmstock and Restricted Byway No.
1, Hemyock Definitive Map Modification Order
2012 as shown on drawing number
HTM/PROW/11/76.

Confirmed on 20 April 2017,
subject to modifications,
following a public inquiry held on
8 and 9 December 2015 and a
public hearing held on
6 December 2016

(i) Restricted Byway No. 50, Sandford Definitive
Map Modification Order 2014 as shown on
drawing number HCW/PROW/14/47.

Confirmed on 12 May 2017
following a public hearing held
on 26 April 2017.

Meg Booth

Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Divisions: Willand & Uffculme; and Creedy, Taw & Mid Exe

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Helen Clayton

Room No: ABG Lucombe House, County Hall, Exeter

Tel No: 01392 383000
Background Paper Date
None

hc250517pra

sc/cr/Public Inquiry Informal Hearing High Court appeals
02 260617

Page 45

File Ref.




Agenda Iltem 9

¥V 18 000G:} °IBS

L L0 sunp SiEp

9./1 LIMOYJ/INLH Jequnu Bumelp

(MooAwsH ‘L "oN AemAg pejouilsay pue
}oojswing ‘g .oz%.m._m&xu&ws_:u ‘Z "ON YjedjooJ)
gl NNOD NOAZA

j |PUn0) Aune3 =8mﬂﬂ= m ..mﬁwﬂ TEANTTTAN (w 5zg xoudde) -0 ~ppokwey ') oN AemAg papugsey )
UOAR(] ) e I PIE (WoizxoddR) -8 (W0ZLXddE) @<y HPOISWING 'gerON AeMOIpUT GonEoN
S34q umep 210z 489piQ uonesyipo|y dep sApiuysq.

£22610004 oN 2ousor =5pesoad B 0 voproesasd o) pes Ane pee uBided tuaiy Sl DORPANIR: PREOYINEUN
oD WD) O SO0 LeUSEmS 5/A5eieR S3H 10 J5g0uRnD B )0 Bojsmed e (e Duidenl KaAng SUTVRIO

= ) v.»

Page 46



Agenda Item 9

ross N | i), A .
.‘.‘ \ = Iy ‘L ."
\ \E— West | (
N ‘Sandfard |

Map Ref SS 7903 7904 8004 i fenesucion nringes Grown copyrioht ond may 162 o prosecution or vt proceodings. Lioancs No. 1000116785~
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL drawing number HCW/PROW/14/47
date Jun 2014
DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDER 201¢ scale 1:4,000 at A4
RESTRICTED BYWAY NO. 50, SANDFORD drawn by TW
Notation Restricted Byway No. 50 D
Sandford C yD yE " 77 (690 metres approXem— evon ‘
o David Whitton S
Existing Public Footpaths s HEAD OF HIGHWAYS, INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT /

Page 47






Agenda Item 10

HIW/17/53

Public Rights of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Modification Orders

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: Itis recommended that the report be noted.
1. Summary

Since the last Committee the following Modification Orders has been confirmed as
unopposed under delegated powers. Plans are attached in the appendix to this report.

0] Footpath No. 35, Combe Martin Definitive Map Modification Order 2016

(i) Footpath No. 69, llfracombe & Bridleway No. 69, llifracombe Definitive Map
Modification Order 2016

(iii) Footpath No. 95, llfracombe Definitive Map Modification Order 2016

(iv) Footpath No. 97, Illfracombe Definitive Map Modification Order 2016

(V) Footpath No. 135, llfracombe Definitive Map Modification Order 2016

(vi) Footpath No. 136, lifracombe Definitive Map Modification Order 2016

Meg Booth
Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Divisions: Combe Martin Rural; and llfracombe

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Helen Clayton

Room No: ABG Lucombe House, County Hall, Exeter

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
None

hc250517pra

shc/cr/Modification Orders

03 260616

Page 49



Agenda Item 10

\\_ s y ’)\\ >'/ 4}1. A q N //' E
AN % W S0
SO T AN R O 8
po) X el g Tt =
@ G L X o \‘\ & Tree ot S
& o/ el e MélveriCottage™., &
Q€ & < ¢ o W P ]
S S ‘“\e af |\ N . < (3.
..\\'~~ & N A VT \ B b
o wor Alle A W S
X ].@ T fe) B o N N X
Pl e HE i . 4
i \ﬁ\)’? S - ‘I\'\\\‘N?f \a‘p‘(\ ] Rheficlotouse 4
: T NN e YT N N N

. . | \\Cormelles / 8
2 R \'\ A | \\ Court L E y
8 filiiy & . / a \ i ; oy
; ~ e < - ; © \ N 4 '
RV i \\ =N Nig R Car Park ""k\\\ '?OSt g:’ /

>, W

Ri di d from the Ord Survey ing with the ission of the Cnnhllejr of{-l;nsoj fc) Crpi\ ;epyright \[J ‘}

Unauthorised reproduction infringes crown copyright and may lead to pr or clvll\g. ’ ings. Devon County Council 100019783 E,‘I i ‘\‘
WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981

Plan No. HCW/PROW/16/22

COUNTY OF DEVON DEFINITIVE MAP an o
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL i :
(FOOTPATH NO.35 COMBE MARTIN) date  May2016

Notation drawnby  AS

FootpathNo.35 A-B-C =======ac===. 240m Devon N

Existing Footpath - — - County Council | 3:\;:} (\),:,'Ijllit;\r:vays
Capital Development & Waste

Page 50



Agenda Item 10

Page 51



Agenda Item 10

Page 52



Agenda Item 10

Page 53



Agenda Item 10

Page 54



Agenda Item 10

Page 55



Agenda Item 10

Page 56



Agenda Item 11

HIW/17/54

Public Rights of Way Committee
6 July 2017

Public Path Orders

Report of the Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: Itis recommended that the report be noted.
1. Summary

Since the last Committee the following Public Path Orders have been made and confirmed
under delegated powers. Plans are attached in the appendix to this report.

@) Diversion Orders

(@ Footpath No. 1, Sheepwash Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order 2016

(i) Bridleway Nos. 18, Kingskerswell & 13, Coffinswell Public Path Diversion Order 2016

(iii) Bridleway Nos. 57, Shaugh Prior & 39, Sparkwell Public Path Diversion Order 2016

(iv) Footpath No. 15, Malborough Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order 2016

(V) Bridleway No. 66, Ilfracombe Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order 2017

(b) Extinguishment Orders

@ Footpath No. 91, llfracombe Public Path Extinguishment & Definitive Map and
Statement Modification Order 2017

(© Creation Orders/Agreements

@ Footpath No. 18, Welcombe Public Path Creation Agreement

(i) Footpath No. 91, lifracombe Public Path Creation & Definitive Map and Statement
Modification Order 2017

(iii) Bridleways No. 41, Sparkwell & No. 72, Shaugh Prior Public Path Creation
Agreement

Meg Booth
Acting Chief Officer for Highways, Infrastructure Development and Waste

Electoral Divisions: Holsworthy Rural; Ipplepen & The Kerswells; Bickleigh &
Wembury; Salcombe; llfracombe; and Bideford West & Hartland

Page 57



Agenda Item 11

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Helen Clayton

Room No: ABG Lucombe House, County Hall, Exeter

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
None

hc250517pra

sc/cr/Public Path Orders template

02 260616

Page 58



6G abed

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survevy mapping with the psrmizzlon of the Conirollsr of HMSO. (¢} Crown Copyright |
Unauthorised repreduction Infringes crown copyright and may lead to presecution er civil procssdings. Deven County Councll LADTE562
3 i

""‘"Sﬁﬁélepwash
Footpath No. 1

X N

[hst i ) |I

\.\..\ : I
\ |

$84807. |\
HCW/PROW/15/029 DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL =  ——c————— Existing public footpaths Scale 1:2,500 (at Ad) hﬁ'ﬂ
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION AND DEFINITIVE MAP ———— Footpath to be extinguished
AND STATEMENT MODIFICATION ORDER 2016 (A-C} 105m D evo n -
SHEEPWASH FOOTPATH NO. 1 === o= == e== Footpath fo be created -

. . (A-B-C) 120m County Council }
David Whitton Chief Officer, Highways, Infrastructure Development & Waste

TT Wa)| epusby



09 abed

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mappling with the parmilzsion of the Conirollar of HMSO. (c] Crown Copyright. | I' i
Unauthorsed reproduction Infringes CTown cnpyrignt HE may lsad te prosscution or civil procasdings. Devon County Councll U_O.EES—E"' —_ e
A e _;_,-’
) B it
L5 A N 3
o \ Footpath No. 1, Sheepwash
__,,»«/f (to be created)
- *”ﬁ_ i
Footpath No. 1, Sheeplvwash
(to be extinguished)
\ Upeate Batzert ¢
's,__‘ B
‘ {SHEEBWIAS
.
$54807 ‘ _
HCW/PROW/15/029.1 DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL = ———meee Existing public footpaths

PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION AND DEFINITIVE MAP
AND STATEMENT MODIFICATION ORDER 2016
SHEEPWASH FOOTPATH NO. 1

David Whitton Chief Officer, Highways, Infrastructure Development & Waste

Footpath to be extinguished
(D-E) 375 metres

— . . e e F0tpath to be created
(D-F-G-E) 480 metres

County Council '~

TT Wa)| epusaby



Agenda Item 11

g 3T )R B
]
2
o £

'-:‘(, o G 2 P
BRI,
k'é m‘fg:vr(’ o .“""",n\é"" s
058 (37
L5 Y

Royal Aller Vale Quarry
(Sand)

v2) 2 / 5 2

e i T e ST e s FaRg

R NI R B D i
el

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey mapping with the parmission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings, Licence No. 100019783

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL Drawing number HCW/PROW/16/31
(BRIDLEWAY NOS. 18, KINGSKERSWELL Date Jul 2016
& 13, COFFINSWELL) Scale 1:2500 (at A4)
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 2016 Drawn by HFC
Notation Existing bridleway '~~~
Tobestoppedup ~ To be created Devon
Bridleway 18, Kingskerswell A-B (250m) wmm—= A -D (415m) =1=1=1=1 County Council

D-E(19m) —1—i—i—1 David Whitton

HEAD OF HIGHWAYS, CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT AND WASTE

Bridleway 13, Coffinswell B-C (22m)

Page 61



Agenda Item 11

r*-il—t"?.'s_dr_‘-',_‘r"l‘_‘

- ‘l"‘li-ﬂ[d-p-.;

O Licence No, 100018783

SX 5660

map ref

4

[

Notation

Bridleway 57, Shaugh Prior to be stopped

Bridleway 57, Shaugh Prior to be created (A-

Existing Bridleways

Page 62

&
=
o
=
© [ e
S| |= Oz
= |12 2
g |3 WE §
mmw as &
2R/ g
HERI E
|3« g
1223 5
Lf i
s E 5¢
o 5 £
W Wm
& 25
o am
azx
.
I
o«
m
3
5
>
?
T £
2 e
= 2 8
- 2 s
w e B
= ~
< 338
o .mBBm
ae |52%E
na s sy
L9-R SH &2
=
eH
4
=) >
2399« T
OxXZ, I
a9g ]
Exo. u
z0x,
UUF_E ]
o<Z2w £
ororx 29
=N Tw om.ﬂ
onNE 3E
V5A —~o
W @3
o?o0 <«®
o= =0
NL [=%
m 3
>
mm
w
-
a
4
Q




g abed

~Buavarm

mapping witn the pe the Controlier of Her Majesty's Ststonery Office © Cron copyrignt
may o

DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL . o
(BRIDLEWAY NOS. 57, SHAUGH PRIOR & 39, SPARKWELL) e T {Rat )
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 2016 si:i S xoa0 ¥
SHEET 2 OF 2 '

drawn by HFC

Notation For information:
Bridleway 39, Sparkwell to be stopped-up (D-E) 85 metres Existing B3417 to be diverted H—H— Devon
Diverted B3417 T Coumty Codnely

\ Bridleway 39, Sparkwell to be created (D-F) 240 metres David Whitton

Existing Bridleways —grporio=d New bridleway adjacent to diverted B3417 LRI RE HEAD OF HIGHWAYS, INFRASTRUGTURE DEVELOPMENT

AND WASTE

TT Wa)| epusby



79 abed

| L KR
_|| | .' Middle Soar
it SRR s i e sl e e e R
BM 124 21m ]
|
L T
I |
[ ] = p: R 7
" H‘"‘"\-.\_‘_\_ |_\ R :.:.f
| i N
! T i
map ref, SX/137 B o e e e e e S oS o St
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL drawing number HCW/PROW/15/64.1
(FOOTPATH NO.15 MALBOROUGH) date November 2016
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION AND DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT scale 11250 (al A4 only)
MODIFICATION ORDER 2016 drawn by PG
To be extinguished To be created D 7
A-B-C-D (80m) evon =
County Council |

Notation

Footpath No. 15

David Whitton

Chief Officer, Highways, Infrastructure, Development and Waste

TT Wa)| epusaby



Agenda Item 11

\

IHele® /9‘\')!' / UOy o
S wATERM] - A=
] e '
g
Kenhel
e e
AN ran e
T
L LY
'//v' L -~
g o

el

T
ridléway, 667

"o &
30

- k]
dpren Ty e o

o,

Ay

x
>

#

%
5 oo

'y
1

‘qyé’\;ﬁ%ﬁ\}tty S

b1
VA, .
Ere

3

AN

map ref: SS 5346

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controlier of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution of civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019783

Devon County Council
(Bridleway No. 66, lIfracombe) Public Path Diversion &
Definitive Map & Statement Modification Order 2017

Notation
Bridleway No. 66 to be extinguished M1 - M2 - M3 (146 m)
Bridleway No. 66 to be created M1 - M3 (149 m)
Existing footpath

Existing bridleway

-

drawing number HCW/PROW/16/53 (1/2)
date November 2016

scale 1:2,500
drawn by CLG

David Whitton Devon

Head of Highways, County Council
Infrastructure Development
& Waste

y

Page 65



99 abed

Kitstone Hill

i I

s

Kitstone Hill

== £ ‘,*l‘;ﬁ'me.‘;m r‘g;-:—.,i [ Grat
R Farm\,\ e
X Sl

map ref: SS 5346 & 5446

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019783

Devon County Council

(Bridleway No. 66, lifracombe) Public Path Diversion & Definitive Map & Statement

Modification Order 2017

|Notation
Bridleway No. 66 M4 - M6

To be extinguished

To be created Existing bridleway ——1—1—
(46 M)ee M4 -M5-M6 (54 m) —1—1—11

@Ieway No.66 M7 -M8-M9 (10m) —— M7 -M8-M9 (273 m) —-1—1-1—

drawing number HCW/PROW/16/53 (2/2
date November 2016
scale  1:2,500
drawnby CLG

David Whitton
Head of Highways, Devon

Infrastructure Development County Council |

& Waste /

TT Wa)| epusaby



Agenda Item 11

The Outfalls =

FLS BERCHES
R el

gz ILFRACON

Cave!

AQUARIUM l’v .

—)

f SS 5147 Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright
map rert. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019783

Devon County Council

(Footpath No. 91, lifracombe) Public Path Extinguishment

& Public Path Creation & Definitive Map & Statement
Modification Orders 2017

drawing number HCW/PROW/16/51
date November 2016
scale 1:1,500
drawn by CLG

Notation

Footpath 91 to be extinguished D17 - D18 (86 M) e
Footpath 91 to be extinguished D19 -D20 (41 m) —
Footpath 91 to be created D19 - D21 (71 m)

\Existing footpath ---------

David Whitton

Head of Highways,

Infrastructure Development

& Waste Devo n :
County Council }'

Page 67

>



g9 abed

o

___________ Existing footpath

ss2318 e e e e e e S P
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, HIGHWAYS ACT 1980, SECTION 25 mrEmERar . N
PUBLIC PATH CREATION AGREEMENT Scale 1:2500 (at Ad)
FOOTPATH NO, 18, WELCOMBE Drawn by HFC
Motation - Footpath No. 18, Welcombe, to be created David Whitton DE‘{DI‘I! I,—“;.ﬂj'

CHEF OFFICER FOR HIGHWAYS, NFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT
AMNDWASTE

TT Wa)| epusaby



Agenda Item 11

-

P

i

Capstone
oint .
3 Cave]

The Out

)

W E

J U bilee
Gardens

-SBilkhvsg

ear?[fe)'

' Bar Park

EEIEAN pre

X

Based on Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Licence No. 100019783

Devon County Council
(Footpath No. 91, lifracombe) Public Path Extinguishment
& Public Path Creation & Definitive Map & Statement
Modification Orders 2017

drawing number HCW/PROW/16/51
date November 2016
scale 1:1,500
drawn by CLG

Notation

Footpath 91 to be extinguished D17 - D18 (86 M) ———
Footpath 91 to be extinguished D19 -D20 (41 m) —
Footpath 91 to be created D19 - D21 (71 m)

\Existing footpath

David Whitton

Head of Highways,
Infrastructure Development
& Waste

Devon o

County Council }

Page 69

4



Agenda Item 11

- Prows by Status
“i=i=i= Bridleway
N Byway

N

Footpath

Restricted Byway

New road

Stopped-up road

(disused)

Mica Dam

fernhill | *
N [eross

60,000
.0
[
T 8
i 5 l :\: HD@xﬂkurv ‘\\\‘
3 Ag?eement ¢ o
: ¥ .:
y
‘. Wheal Flor|
(disuse|
Shaft
frownhill Down (dis) .
5 59,500

iWheal Sidney
& % (nlsused)

iy lauarry\_‘
ok

“Coney Rark 4

.
‘(dasuseds ‘\_,:\
¢ i o

—

Y Plantatirn

- = , At® G s o] ) [
Crown copyrlght(énd daubgs?gg/%/ﬁj/‘ }{19733 / /f gy
k] b Quarry FB'\T -

Quarry
(disused) i

Bottle Hil
Cottages

Bottle

Little

Hill 2

Sq

Drakelands

Quarry
(disused) ,

Page 70



	Agenda
	4 Devon Countryside Access Forum
	5 Parish Review: Definitive Map Review 1997-2017 - Parish of Burlescombe
	6 Parish Review: Definitive Map Review - Parish of Bittadon, with Marwood and West Down
	7 Parish Review: Definitive Map Review 2016-2017 - Parish of Bridgerule
	8 Parish Review: Definitive Map Review - Parish of Sparkwell
	9 Public Inquiry, Informal Hearing and Written Representation Decisions; Directions and High Court Appeals
	10 Modification Orders
	hc250517pra Modification Orders July 17

	11 Public Path Orders

